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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present (helr annual r2pon together with the fnanciad statemenis ang auditor's repor of the
chantable company for tha year 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 The annual report sarves the purposas of
poth @ Trustees' report. and a Directars’ fepor under company law

The Trust cperates five Church of England scademes and four community acadamies for pupils agad 2-18

years. serving communities in Sunderland Washington Hartlepool, Stockton and Darkngton admitting pupils
who are wholly of mainfy drawn from the arsas in which the schocls are Siuated. The academies provide

Grange Primary School converied ana jcaned the Trust on 1 March 2024 and 5t Aidan's CE Academy transferred
fram & SAT into the Trust on 1 June 2024

The academies combinad Pupil capacity @ 3 835 Including nursery and had a roll of 3 245 pupids in the schoed
censug on 15 May 2024 This was increased in June 2024 when St Aidan's CE Academy joined addng an
additional capacity of 700 pupils wilh a Pupss on roll of 598, giving a tatal Pupil foll for the Trust of 3 845

Pupils are admitted in accordancs with 8ur Admissions Policy which is ratfied annually by the Board of Trusiass
Maragement of Admissions is Gelegated to the Locai Governing Body for mach schoal and each school has its
Own admigsions policy. approved Dy the Board,

Structure, governance and managemant

The Teaching Schoal Hub frades as Marthern Lights Teaching School Hub and the Early Yearg Stronger
Practce Hub trades as Northemn Lights Early Years Stranger Practice Muk

Dretails of the Trustess who servad gunng 1he year, and to the date thass Sccounts are approved are includad i
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1

Members’ liability
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& Company Limited by Guarantes|

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and managsmant {eontinued)

Trustees' indemnities

Trustees banafit from indemndy msurance undar the Deparmant of Education’s Fiax protecton arrangemant
(RPA) which by virtue of any fule of law wenld oiherwise attach 1o them in respect of any negigence. default or
hrmach of trust or brasch of duty of which they may be guilty in relation 1o the Trust, proveded that any swch
rrlurl-m:lihlﬂHniirhmdtnlnythmmingl'rnmlrrjmnrmmﬂmnﬁuﬂnmhﬂhhlhrm
of trus? or breach of duty and provided alsc that any such Inslance shall not axtend 1o the costs of any
unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecubon beaught agamst the Directors in thew capacity as Directors of the
Trusl The indamnity is unkmited

Method of recrultment and lppﬂlﬂtnlﬂtmnhﬂhnﬂTmﬂll

Mambership & determinad in gecordance with the compoasban sat oul in Arbicie 12 onwards in accordance with
mu.ﬁ:ﬁ&u.thuTmtrummiudnmm

. 5M:nﬂﬂ—iufwhmuﬂuﬂhw-nﬂhnamrduﬁruum
41 Trustees - 1 of whom is the CEC

The Mambare are rasponsibls for apposntng the Triustees in SCLSSon with the body they reprasent In
accordance with the composition set put in Article 45 onwards. When vacancee anse the Members ane able fo
appaint Trustess whens thair skills and expartise are degmed beneficial 10 st operabons An apgfication and
dus diligence process will ba undaraken 1o ansure any futuhe board mambars share the aihos and vakues of the
Trust and to ersure their appointment will bring added value to the trust board Trustees may appraach potential
Tmmmmmrmmmmmmm of tha skills audt The persan applying 1o be & Trusiee
will comphete an apphcation The Chair of the Board will reviaw this application and nomirale the applicant 1o the
mermibers, whers appropriate. The Ledm of aice tor any Trustes shall be 4 ymare, save (hat this tma lirmit shall
not apply to the CEQ or any post held ax-officin Subject ta rarmaining eligible to be paricular type of Trustes
any Trustee may be re-appainted of re-glectad

The articles of assocahan require there fo De 3 suinemur of three Trustees to be rasponsible for the statutory
and consttubanal affains of the Trust and s managemant.

Policies and procedures adoplad for the induction and training of Directors

All Trustess are prowided with an nduchan pack which provides them with an gvarnew of Northem Lights
Learning Trust, and an overviaw of the acadermes in the Trust an understanding of charity aspecis, an
undersianding of the role of 5 Truses sxpectations of the role and relevant policigs. The documentahion
provided will 2lways incliuds

our gewermance sifeclurs

terms of reference

schema of dalsgetion

articles of associabon

Truel devslopment pian

annual calendar

gteat Ofsted mports for sach of cur Bcademies
Latest financial accounis

\atest approved J-year budge!

Acadarmy Trust Handbook

NLLT Financsal Procedures Folicy

CC3 The Essential Trustes What you need io wnow’ and Charties and charily trustess — an nduction for
school governo’s

« [DIE Govemance Handocok
Policies and procedutes adopled for ihe inguction and Faining i Burmetorn (conlinued)
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

= Nolan Prnciples
*  MNLLT Code of Conduct
* Relevant Governance Handbook/[¥E documantation

The trairang and induction provided for new Trusteas depends on their Bxisting axpenance so adddional
documentation may be provided whare Mecassany

Norhern Lights Leaming Trust Trustees have had access lo Confederation of School Trusts (CST) Trairing
bnefings and masterclassas this year alongside @ mambership of NGA, fo ensure they are able 1o keep up 1o
date with all fraining

Organisational structure
The Trysi's unified management siructurs has been reviewsd gunng 202324 and consists of 4 leveis

Boarg of Trustees
CEO

Lead for SEND, Deector of Early Years Director of People Directar of Estates Director of Governance was
added summer 2024 ang Headleachers/Heads of Schools)
*  Senior Leadership Teams (SLT)

The Trustees are responsibile for siralegic, financial. HR, estates. sducational and goveynancs respansibiities
nchuding determining policy, adegting annual Mprovesmant plans followng seff-avaluation reviews maaitaring

The CEQ, CFO, Headisachars Depanment Budgetholders and Trusiees are responsible for the authorsaton of
spending within agreed budgets as stated in the Scheme of Delegation and Financs Pobcy The CEQ COO
Headieachers and Trustess are responsble for the sppaintment of stafl

The Chisf Finance OMicar '8 responsgible for the managemant of the fmancial systems, Scurning additional funds
8nd ensuning efficient and afactive Lss of resources The Chief Finance Officar 1§ respansibie for the
Buthonsation of SPENAING up 1o agreed imds as stated in the Scheme of Delegation and Financial Procedures
Palicy
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
& Company Limited by Guarantee|

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Senior Leadership Team for 2023/24 in each school is made up as follows:

School Senior Leadership Team

Benedict Biscop CE Academy Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher, Senior Assistant
L ) Headteacher and two Assistant Headteachers

Hart Primary School Head of 5chool and a shared Assistant Headteacher

with 5t et

St Peter's Elwick Coff Primary School

Head of School and a shared Assistant Headteacher

-

5t. Helen's Primary School

Head of School, Deputy Headteacher and 2 Assistant
Headteachers

Holley Park Academy

Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and Assistant
Headteacher

lan Ramsey CE Academy

Headteacher, 1 Deputy Headteacher, 1 Senior
Assistant Headeacher and 5 Assistant Headteachers

Venerable Bede CE Academy

Restructured in year to Associate Headteacher, Head
of School, 2 Deputy Headteachers and 3 Assistant
Headteachers.

Grange Primary School

—

Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and 3 Assistant
Headteachars

5t Aidan's CE Academy

Headteacher, 2 Deputy Headteachers, 3 Assistant
Headteachers

o

Tha Semor Leadership

Tesm are responstia for all semeants of Teaching and Learning in Ineif SCHools.

Natwork mestings take place across the Trust inchuding

Safeguarding network mestngs for Trustes

school

A wide range of subject specific networs
DSL meetings

Safequarding knk and Saleguarding Links of asch indovidual

Core suppar for HeadteachersHeads of school

Arrangemants for setting pay and remunerstionof key managemant peraannal

Sehoo! Teachars Pay and Conditions (STF
Natianal Agreament on Pay and Condtions

Ch and
ol Banice for Local Governmenl Sanices [Grean Boghk)

This also apples to the Trust kiéy managemean parsannel and fakes into account any panchrmars, paramaeiers

or critarig used in BRTTing

theit pay. Annual Performance Management réviews jextamal and rtarmal]

racommend pay awards 1o the Trustess who cecioe any pay awards within the identfied pay range for
indiwduals. Aaditional responsibilities are algo kaken into accournt
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Structure, govemance and managemant {eontinuad)
Trade union facility time
Relevant union officlals

Number of smployees who were relevant union oficials during the year
Fuli-time equrvalant employes number

o

Percentage of time spent on tacility time

Percentage of time Mumber of
S plcymes

0% g

1%-50% .

51%-99%
100%

Percentage of pay bill spent an faczility time EDOG

Tatal cost of faciity time .
Total pay bl 2
Fercentage of tofal pay bill spent on facdimy time - L1

Paid trade union activities

Time spant on paid trade union Aciivities as a perceniage of 1otal paid facility time - %
hours

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

podicy guch that whare any interests arg Oeclarad, the Trusiee would remove themsalves from the decssion-
making process

There have bean refated party transachians withun tha accounting period. J Heaton is alsa & Trusies of Schools
Morth East and the Trusi have a partnesshup agreemant wilh them The company i not for profd and is therefore
deemed to be at cost. 5 Lymer a Trustee is 8lso a Trusiee for the Lagacy Learnmg Trust in her rode as CEQ
The Trust has puichased senvices from schoots within the Legacy Learming Trust as party of the DfE funded
Strongar Practice Hub. The conditians of the gironger practice hub grant reguere the gervices 1o be at cosl.

Business Interests are daclared on he wecsde and further detail o ransactions during the year can be found n
Mote 25
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantss)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, govemance and management (continued)
Engagement with employees {including disabled persons)

Crver 2020/24 the Trust has continued to grow in 828 in regards o the number of amployees who are employed
Various communicabon mathods have besn ullised to ensure employees are provedad with all information which
may be a matter of concem for them Thi::nmmﬂmﬂmﬂmﬂmmlfmuﬂnmwmﬁjmﬂ
our Trust, 50 all stalf have access 16 @ global address book and access fo sharad aams. We deveioped our
Sieylights fortnightly staf! briefing wiich pravides snfarmation 1o staff about our Trust wide initialives and peopie
All 3138 ware inviled 1o 8 Trust corfarence @s part of their professsonal davelopment which took placa n
Septemper 2023 We also have a Shine which 18 our tarmly pubbication to celebrale cur indridual schoois and
ghare what 18 happening in aach school.

The Trust conducts an annual survey collectng views from all staff on a number of key arsas VWorkng groups
nave been formed as a methad 1o consult with amployess on a range of msuas which sould impact on the
company's performance. for exampés ihe publication of raw pokcies.

Lifis, remps and disatied toilets are insialled and doof widihs are adequate to enable wheeichair access 1o all
main areas of the Trusi The palicy of the Trust i to support recrutment and retention of students and

amployar
Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

The prncipal sbjective and activity of the charitable company, Northern Lights Learming Trust. & fa provide
sutstanding sducabion for pupils of all abibties between the agas of 2-18. In accordance with the Artcles of
Associaton the chariable company has adopted 3 “Scheme of Governance” approved by the Secretary of Stales
fir Education to advance fof the pubhc henafit aducation in the Unted Kingdom, in particutar bul without
prejudice fo the generality of the foregoing oy astablishing, maintmning. CAMyINg on, Managing and developing
Academies which shall offer & broad and balanced curiculum and which shall inchade

,  Cruren of England schools designaied a3 such which shall be conducted in accordance with the prnciples
practces and tenats of the Church of England both generally and in pamicuiar in relgton to arranging for
religious education and daly acts of worship, and having regard 1o any advice issued by the Diccesan Board
of Education; and

i DOther academies whether with or withaut @ designated religious characler but in relation (o each of he
Argdamiss 1o recognise and SUpPo feir individual slhos, whethar ar not designalad Church of England

The Trust Cantral Taem & pased in Saaham. @t Cantral Trust offices. Officas are aiso held at Benadicl Bscop
CE Acadermy in Sundarand

Fage B




MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

ISchool When joined  [Ofsted ISIAHE
Trust
Benedict Biscop CE February 2012 | Outstanding (2012) Quistanding
Academy (March 2017)
St Peter's November Good with Qutstanding Excellent (2022)
Elwick CofE 2018 for Leadership &
Primary School Management Behaviour
& Aftitudes and Personal
Development (2023)
Hart Primary School | 2018 Good {2022) MNIA
St Helen's
Primary Sehool 2022 Goad (2019 Mia,
Holley Park Academy | 2022 Good (2024) M
Grange Prnmary School | 2024 Good (2018) MN/A
\Venerable Bede CE February 2023 | Good (2021) Outstanding {June
cendary Academy 2017)
lan Ramsey CE February 2023 | Good (2022) Fulfilling their role as
Secondary Academy a CofE Academy
(March 2024)
St Aidan's CE June 2024 Good (2020) Good (October 2017)
Academy
All scademies are non-selective and aer Fupils a broad eurriculum. The pupils whao attend the acadermiss live

mainly in the surrounding are

allawing rrany pupils of all ages 1o
oevelopment All araderses argan

a5 All academies offer pupils activities and B
participala i a vanaty of expeniencas
is8 warous visits and annchmen &

classroom. These visits and ennchmeant getivibes are fully inclusive.

The Trust ams to ensue that our schonls rea
distincliveness. Our Trust oparates with integr
schools Wae firmly belisve thal wa are sfrang

Trust Visian Shining Stronger Together

Trus! Mission Te snsurs sve
This magaion & aur shared pu

Our vision for excellent education & that we work m
standards. We keep children and young peopis at
grow #nd leam together Leader, teacher and
In mvary child achewving the best they can. in a

perances beyond the school day
which anhance learmning and social
Tpengnces to develop learming beyond the

i1 81 in2 heart of their communities and retain their
%. 8 foundation of support and pride in the achievernants of aur
B Iogethar

ryane flounishes. with children and ¥oung people-at the heart of all we do

TRase AN0 we are ak responsdle for warking 1o this aim

pannarship to raise each other up to the highest aspiraticnal

Ihe heart of what we do and provide a culture whers siaf can
stafl developmént is what underping great culcomes. We baliave
Robstic edusation threugh an indhidualised approach

We are apen 1o leaming and snanng that ensures an coen-minded approach and achisves fha b5 for our

pupds

Page &




HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Olbjectives and activities [continued)
Chyr wisghon rests on our Trust values
Dur Trust values:

1 Umulm:hnu-mmuahmhuumatmpnrmnceruru:-Wapuulnﬂuiunlh:nh:lnﬂmmmm
decimon-making, recognising that our work (s ukimaiely o guide tha next gererstion

2 Cmmr.r-ﬂur:mmhﬂnnhﬂhdmmﬁmmwm:m-mﬁmmnu:mnpaml:nrty
as well 35 a valua, embracing belonging, kindness, compassion ragpect and the opportunities it brings

3 Support Support is the rock upon which we chodse 1D lean to thrive and the scaffolding we can give wih
humility to athers, accepting that all of us nesd support al one time or anoter

4 im-inwrlnummwrmimdmﬂmdnlngwmmmwuwllnhmmaulhmh:md
encourage trust

L Prluh-wilinwdnmhntw&un'nnﬂlllmdﬂmﬂlmpmudn\‘whﬂwu:m|mmdfhl=HHnu
wa make.

Chur Culture:

Collsboration and parnership underpins our agorcach. We baleve in Ine power of retationships, We believe in
appsoachamility, humnility, squaliy W balieve in avery child as an indhvidual We are an inchusive Trust. We
value people for wha they ars and support them to b the best version of thamsabves that they can be — pupds
wtafl, famdies

Northarm Lights Learning Trust have expanence of schpol improvemant from improving echoois with Oisted
judgements of Requires Improvement through to Good and Outsimnding

\We are fortunate that our Trust is alsc a D/E gesignated Teaching School Hub and &n Early Years Stronges
Practice Hulb along with & designated Science Hub and we have & number of National and Specialist Leaders of
Education We alsa have trained Ofsted and SIAMS inspecions in our giaff 1mam

Wa are evidenca-based and research-informed and we make the bast decisions for our achools based on this
W judge our schools’ effectiveness on our schaol eumiculum intentions. impact ang holistic educaton previded
including the personal developmant of our pupils

W bahave that the keys 1o making a differance ars

Staft deveiopment at all levels including leadarship. teaching and support staff
Ciear pathways for stalf career development

Understanding of context and our Trust defintbon of contaxt

Quality of relationships

Supportive approach

Aceoyntabdity and challenge — including seff-accourtability

Charity in roles and relponsbiEtes

Hegh ambinons

Focusing on key controflable pnormes

Engagement with pupils, parentsicarers Govemars and wisar agencies
Infovative aperoach, including ressarch and develcpman|

® = ® B = mw & & 8 ® ®
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantse)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Objectives and activities [continued)
Objectives, strategies and activities

In setting cur obyectives and plannng our activites the Trustees have given caveful consaderation 1o the Charity
Commigsion’s general guidance and public benefit

Trust Development Pian Objectives for 2023-24

Imipact on pupil outcomes threads directly through every part of oor Trust Development Plan,

|_To continue to embed the voice of the child in all we do as a Trust®

To develop a culture in all our schools that ensures that all children and adults can flounsh in
Northern Lights, through the value of pride across the academic, pastoral and wider schaol
priorities (For chureh schools the links to the CofE ‘Hope for the Flourishing Schools System')*

Ensuring all schools are focussed on working together as one organisation for the benafit of al|
in the Trust, embedding the ‘Northern Lights way'

Recruitment, retention and people strategy

Stale of School Estates and buildings includ) sustainability

Trust wide a ach to SEND

Staf development with a focus on support staff

Grawth of the Trust including Quality Assurance Systems

Targeted outcome improvement (schools and phase ific)

ITT development including secondary ITT

“This prianty will ba present on each school gevelopment plan. adapied 1o be specific for each school's mantaxt

Trustees monitored progress on thesa prionties through Trust Board meetngs, FARM (Finance. Audit and Risk
Management) meebngs and Standards commitiee maeatings. Additional meetings with key members of the
Ceniral Team. including the CED and the Chars Mestings where Chairs of Govermors mast with Chair of Board
and CEQ CEQ reports detailed progress an development prionties We also implementsd a SHINE leam iz
share communication betwean the different rales of cantral leadership

We have a deladled growth strategy that details sur magsured. planned growth and includes detail on aur offer of
BUppor a5 a sponsor trust as well as an Associats parinership model for good or better schools interestad in
working together with us to judge whether the fit is nght &nd if they wauld be interested in [eming our Trust

Owr Associate School model has proved 1o be an effectve model previously with St Helen's Primary School
joiming the Trust after being an Asseciats Member of the Trust

This year we have received two TCaF [Trust Capacity Funding) ictalng £188 55525 This has been spant an
developing our Trust to strengthen it 1o grow. as a result of Grange Prmary and 51 Aidan s CE Academy joning
this year We have submted additional TCaF bids which f Bwarded will b spant to further davelop the growth
of our Trust in 2024.25

Public banafit

The Trust's aima and achlevernents are sat aut within this report and have been undenaken 1o further its
chariaple purposas for the public benefit The Trustees have campliad with the duly under Section 4 of tha
Crantias Act 2011 to have dua regard to public beneh guidance published by the Charity Commission for
England and Wales and the Trustess have considered this guidance in deciding what activities tha Trust should
undanake
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report

Achisvwemonts and Performance

Koy parformance indicators

Safsguarding Al eateguarding arrangements = all academies was effactive for 2023-24 The Trust was
supported by Safeguarding First throughout the year \We have engaged Clennell 1o support the Trust in 2024-
25,

Contrioution ta the wider system The Trust confinues to contribute to the wider system. The Teaching School
Hub is now well estabfshed ang working m-hrpmdm‘mmlm&h?mnml.
Primary Sacondary and Special schools The Trust nrowvides Intial Taacher Training through & parinership with
Durham SCITT. As the Teaching School Hub we deliver the Early Carser Framework, act as an Approprate
Bady for ECTs and provide the full range of NPQs (partnered with Ambition and Church of England Providers) as
well a5 prewding supoart for the region and acting As @ signpost 1o support teacher professional developmant
from ITT to Exacutive Leadership & in all ghasas from Early Years 1o pos! 16, including special and altermative
Provison

The CEQ continues 1o sit &n htﬁtﬂnwnmmlﬂmmmwhﬂhﬂmhn
Regional Direcior Adwisary Board She has also been deployed as an NLE in ihe region again this year and ais
an the Ofsted CEQ advisary group. ﬂnuinnpmgmmdlntpmmquwmnmnfmu
carthership roles which contribute 1o the wider system

Chur Trust has been funded throwgh Trus! and School improvemen! Fundemg to supper @ rgmbear of primary
schools and Trusts, which was 3 successful deploymeni. Tha leam within aur Trust ncludes raned Ofsted
inspectors, SIAMS mepectors. NLE, SLEs. SEND reviewers Pupil Premium Reviewers. Our Trust have prowded
schoal 18 schoal support to 8 hmnumrﬂmmmmiwmmumr

Academic: 2023-2024 Statutory Data [primary)

Brnmary schools’ Bcadems oulnomes

> . 3 l}_! g ar iy Tl B by [ Paters Mt
A #E. 5% % T il b | [
e ko o T ] L Lo ] s R g | ey
§ e 5 5 LTS | HE S |i."?m i | Wil |
== H 3 E ETEN 1.3 141 ] 1
=z ay - b | BT% | IS & Fits iqﬂu_
= ' M | W i | s | s T
e 1% iy Fia] | s 1% % _—l
il o
e 3.1 | e bH b1 | 1R, i |
S TN | s s e ah % =1
1% :1._:.'\ s s i™h 1% 1dk
JE'I"_I‘_ 108 1 il | LIy 1 ciH i |
Wk g i Wl i [ Gl B o L ]
= ‘fi“ DE-TN Ly 1% i | 1% A%
sl 1m o8 ] i e flie | .,..."!'!' b |
T it " [ Ea | F el [ il | 100 i,
] s BEs [ i s s [ s [T
[ %] E PR i 5% | TN ha i
] o [4In ™ 1% i [ i

P pr=p————— T PR B R

MNotes on data. O sl mrm&muﬂmmmmnﬁmmmdhdhmnnnm::u Thd I8
recograed withe he Trist.
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limitad by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT |CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic repart (continued)
Achievements and Performanes {continued)

Key performance indicators (continued)
Secondary schools’ academic outcomes

Collaboration
Attainment 8
4l 45.1 37.6 35.47 46.3
d+ Eng & Mat 63.0% 42.6% 48.0% 65, 7%
4+ Eng (best) B0.0% 65.0% 58.5% 76.1%
4+ Mathsg 83.0% 47.0% 57.8% 70.9%
[ 5+ Eng & Mat 35.6% 21.0% 25.7% 45 7%
| 5= Eng (best) &67.0% 47.0% 41.3% 61l.1%
S+ Maths 43.0% 26.0% 31.7% S51.8% |
ED#CC standara pas: 12.2% 17.0% 7.3% 16, 7%
Ebace strong pass 5.7% 10.8% 1.3% 24.1%
Boys 4132 38.5 35.01 44,9 {FFT)
Garlg 8.6 o g 35.53 48,8 {FFT)
Dt!-aﬂu'lnﬂed ar7 9.3 1871 36.8 [FFT)
Cther 46.8 43.0 4234 43.6 (FFT)
| SENE 3.0 N A& 12.63
SEMN K 30.2 22.0 1.25
| Progress &
all -0.42 -0.98 -1.0 c.01
Bays L B5 -1.05 1.0l
Garlg <0.20 -0.EB -0.9%
Gender gap 048 0.18 0.08
Disadvantaged -0.43 -1.42 -1.18
Ot 0,10 -0.80 0.82
Disadvantaged gap -0.39 iaj Q.36
SEME -4.18 M/A -1.63
SEN K 0.99 -1.12 -1.82
% Positive P§ 35.7% 26.5% 16.81% 53.2%

Data in ID5R for secondaries now raieasad I lanuary 2025 tollaboration data taken from SISRA
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 AUGUST 2024

Sirateglc report (continued)

Achisvements and Performance (continusd)

Key performance indicators {continued)

Atendance
Attendance school | National [per phase] |
lan Ramsay 90.0% 90.9%
St Aldan's B9.8% 90.9%
venerable Bade §4.1% 50.9%
Benedict Biscop 96.5% 94.5%
Hart §95.2% 94.5%
Holley Park 95.2% 94,5%
St Helen's 54.7% 54.5%
5t Peter's 96.4% 94,5%
Grange 91.3% 94.5%

Data taken from DFE portal {end of academic year 2023-24) Grange and 5t Helen's
include ARP pupils



MORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMNDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and Performance (continued)

o Baneaal Mark 5 5 Halley et PRP— Gown g kel B
Bisgop By Panery Hulan & e Rarrasy Betds
oE (=21, Azadermy
1,979 3568 &5D, 157 LR i am 1086 TR Bl B34
AT Py % f ! %950 141 851136 e I
T el i 8 Mnaid
—_ 760 6 7 TR 1B B 1384400 L EEIT. T spmarr | sames | sasseas
Telad S2ating 5,511,168 §. e 9y
1333402 AR AES 281 4B 1 Ll
1.571. Y 1,118, Ta7 19571 E18 015,358 1, 0l
Takad
AN i 737 a 21T N Er R irr]
[ Sl T Bl 282 TEIO7E TREL TR 1431, 70 B ANE S0 1102883 Tk I
SRR BN
AL TrF]
Farh ko BB, 501 e ATT Dl g 18T, 55 THO, 3T WILEEH 8T 143 13,889 1,073,008
Femarean oa 5
ofaag 201 LA 2% e T P (LT mesy TR ETEN

The above analysis doesn't include the Central function or the DfE hubs,

Golng concern

After making appropriate anquines, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expactaton that the Trust has
adequale resources to continue in operational exsstence for the foreseeable future. For this reasan it contnuaes
o adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of

the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Financial review

The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the Depariment of Education {DE} via the Educaticn and
Skills Fundirg Agency (ESFA} in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular
purposes, The grants received from the DFE/ESFA during the year ended 31 Auwgust 2024 and the associated
expendifure are shown as restnicied funds in the Staternent of Financial Activities

The Trust also recelved grants for fixed assels from the DIEFESFA. |n accordance with the Charbes Stalement

of Recommended practice, "Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2013, such grants are shown under
the Staterment of Financial Actvibes as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fxad assat fund

balance is reduced by ennual depreciation charges over the expecied useful life of the assels concerned

In addition, the Trust had ather income grants from the ESFA funding from Local Authorities including Early
Years Funding and High needs top up funding fer children with Special Educational Meeds, The Trust have
additional income from providing wraparound care in the form of breakfast, after school and paid nursery
gducation.

The financial position of the Trust is subject to risks which may have an adverse efiect on the financial
performance of the Trust including increased premises costs, the enargy crisis, the mcreased inflation costs and
bath the teaching and support staft pay awards. These risks are managed by the Finance, Audit and Risk
Management committee through reguiar budget monitoring and can be met by the positive levels of reserves the
Trust has.

During the year ended 31 August 2024, total recurrent grant funding from DFE/ESFA logether with other
incoming resources of £45 388 000 was in excess of expenditure of £27 258 000. The excess of expendilure
over income for the year (excluding pension reserve movements, endowmeant funds and restricted ixed asset
funds) was E818.000;

All of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the Trust's objectives

At 31 August 2024 net book value of fixed assels was £E24 546,000 and movements in tangible fixed assets are
shown in note 14 to the Financial Statements, The assets were used exclusavely for providing education and the
associated support servicas to the students of tha Trust

Tha pravisions of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS}) 102 have been applied in full in respect of LGPS pension
scheme resulting in 3 deficit of E- recognisad on the Balance Sheet

The Trust held fund balances as at 31 Avgust 2024 of £27 402,000 comprising £114,000 of restncted general

funds, £627 000 of restricted endowment furds, £25, 135 000 of restncted ixed asset funds, a pension deficit of
E- and £1.526,000 of unrestricted funds.
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Reserves policy

The Trustees are responsible for determining the level of financial ressrves to be carmed forward at the end of
any financial penod The Trustees have delegated the manitoring of potential period end reserves to the
Finance, Audit and Risk Management Commitize a8 part of their tarms of reference

The Trustees will ensure that the levels of reserves that can be carried forward al the end of the financial penod
will be in line with the guidance received from the ESFA on the treatmant of Ganeral Annual Grant (GAG)
income and other grants. The Trust holds an endowment for 5t Aidans CE Academy,

The Trusiees will always try to match income with sxpenditure i the current peniod and will anly carry forward
reserves that i considers are necessary for future periods’ expendiure. The Trustees will consider the Schoaol
Development Plans for capital developments required. The Trustees may accumuilate reserve funds raised from
privale sources for the benafit of the schools in future years, and this & discussad annually

Tha Trust is amung to maintain a reserve of approximately £1 500 000 over 8 5-year period, This. 5
approximately 1 month of $iaffing salary co8ts, The Trust has a policy of replacing and Improving the Budldings
for the benefit of the pupils currently within the academies and considar this (o be 8 rmasonable amaunt Whan
the Trust expands. this figure will grow m propartion

Funds cannot be reakised by disposing of tangible fixed assels.

The amount of free reserves shown is above tha S-year targs! of £1 500 000. This has besn realised throwgh
prudent financial plannng and i currently £1 528 000,

The reserves palicy s reviewed ann ualty and considaration given to now sy excess funde should e ublised
Investmant policy

The Trust has made 2 mvesimants in depesit accounts in the 2023-24 financial year Interest rates are reviewed
regularly to ensurs invesiment return |s maximisad whist minimising the rigk 1o the initiel investmeant

Qur aim is to spand the publicly lunded monies wih WRiCh W are anirusied for the direct educational banefit af
students as soon as is prudent. The Trust does not consider the invesiment of surplus funds as & primany
activity, rather it is tha resull of best practice as and whan CIfCumsiances allow

The Trust will prepare such budgets and cash flow forecasis as are required by legislation and best practice 1o
ensure the viability and sustamability of the actvibes of the Trus!. From time to trme, operatonal and strategic
decisions related 1o the education of pupits wil result in substantial cagh balances at the bank ovel 3 sustained
period. These penads are wenidied by the Chisf Finance (¥ficer 8% part of the normal forecasting actvity and,
when dentified, wil resull in the Trust making an invesiment in accordance with any guidance provided in tha
Trust's Financial Handbook

Frior to investing funds, the CED and the Finance Audt and Risk Managemen: Commitiee must be sabisfied

that the cash flow predictions pravided are aseurate and thal the amount and tme periad of the invEstmant gl
not compromise the viabilty. and sustainability of the actrvhies of the schools
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Principal risks and uncemainties

The Trust maintans a nsk regiater which & reviewed ragulary by the Fimance, Audid pnd Risk Maragement
Cammittes to snsure sabsfaciory arrangements are in piace to manage he righ

In February 2015, the Trust adopted the Risk Protecton Arrangemanis provided by the ESFA. This has
corbnued annually

There are reguiar internal revsews of all risk management msues lad by vanous staff e g Director of Estates.
Chief Oparating Officer and Chiaf Finance Officer and wmaching staff However, there are alsc ongaing reviews in
ragponsa to shuatons or new legisiation or information

The Trust considers all risks and the Trusiees have implemented & nurmber of systams to agsass naks thal may
impact the Trust, aspecially in operational areas 4. in relation 1o teaching. managemeant of IT sacunty,
safeguarding health and safety, educational school visits, data protection and in relation to the control of finance
They use systems, incheding oparatonal procedures and internal financial controls. Internal Assurance focusad
on the rsk managemsnt in place by the Trust The recommandations of the repart will be mplementad oves
2024/25 1o grve additional assurance that systams ars in piace to miigate risks

Fundraising

The Trustees coerate aftective control over the Trust's fundraising by

® achng in the best interasts of the Trust
s managing ndividusl sBcademy résources rasponsibly, which includes protecting and safeguarding ds assels
« acting with reasonable care and skill

The Trust manages all of A8 cwn fundraming This is used

s o provide additional resources for the pupils, which might not otherwise be avadisbie
s tosupport chertable causes linked 1o the school 8.9 Cancer relaiad charites, Children in Need in addition 1o
Local chantiss eic

The means usad io fundraise are kept within school populations and include remsing furds through pupés taking
part in schookled sponsored svents which includes families and triends coninbuting io avanis such as cake
sales. Christmas fayres and non-uniform days Whars possible, the Trust use this as an appoTtunity o develap
social swareness and 8 responsibility for "giving” All pupils take Cart n thess achivibes bul we dra gware that
same are vuinarable and thersfors there s no obligation to contribute financally

The managemant of fundraising s respansibie. with all menies banked and accouniad for WWhere possibla o

receipt fram the Charity is always requestad The complaints and Whistieblowing policias would ensure afl
complaints and concems are dealt with appropnately.
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGSUST 2024
Plans for future periods

The Trust has 8 comprehensive growth sirategy and s commitied to growth. We are warking in partnarship with
the Regional Trustee and [hocese to grow and develep our Trust, We are a Trust identified by the Diocese 1o
grow. Wie are in conversation with schools  intarested in |oinmng Northarn Lights. We have recantly baen
dporoved lor Dame Dorothy Primary School in Sundarand to conrvert and [oin our Trust We applied for TCAF
funding lo strengthen our Trust to further develop, We will continus 1o monitor and review our growth sirategy

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The Trust and is Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustess of any ather charity organisation.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Ingofar as the Trislees are awars
* fhere is no relevant audit mformation of which the charitabile company's auditor is raware

* the Truslees have taken all staps that they cught to have taken 1o make themselves awara of any relevant
audd information and fo establish that the suditor is aware of that information

The Trustees' Repor. INcorparating a sirategc report, was approved by crder of the Board of Trustess as the
company dwectors, on 12 December 2024 and signad on is bahalf by

-gﬁ%}m{f@@ L_O/

Chair of Trusiass
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trusiess, we acknowledge we have overall responsibiity for ensunng {nat Morthemn Lights Learming Trusl has
an aMective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. Howavar, such a systern is dasigned to
manage rathar than efimmnale he nsk of failure to achieve busingss objectives and can provide anly reasonable
and not absoluta assurance againgt materal migstatemant or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guicance in OfE's Governance Handbook and
competancy framewnrk for governance

The Board of Trustees has delsgated the day-io-cay sesponsibility to the CEQ as Accounting Officer, far
muWWWhmmmnWﬂmmammmﬂwmm
in accordance with the requiraments and responsibiiies assignad to & in the funding agraameant batween
Marthem Lignts Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. Thay ase alse responsible for reporting
iz ihe Board of Trusteas any malerial weaknesses of breakdowns in intemal control

Govemance

The mformation on govemance inchuded hera supplements that described in the Trusiaes Report and in the
Siatament of Trusiees Responsbikbes The Board al Trustees has formally met 3 timas during the year and
hald their Annual General Maeting.

Attgndanee duning ihe year at mestings of the Board of Trustees was 3s lollows

Tristes Maslings attended Dut of 8 possible
K Harmmmand, Chasr 3 3
J Brine (appointed 131 November 2023) 3 )
J Fabcus (appointed 19 August 2024) 0 o
J Heaton, CED and Accounting Officer 3 3
C Hedgson resgned 1 Dctoper 3023 o 0
C Inkster 3 3
B Jones (resigned 3 October 2024) CEOQ prd 2 3
Arcoanting Oficer

M Ladier [resigned 17 September 2024) F 3
5 Lymer (ressgred 27 Septamber 2024 2 3
P Ofsen (resignad 28 March 2024 1 3
{ Raberis (appoiniad 12 September 2023 2 3
D Tolinurst 1 3
N Wilimms a 3

Martharn Lights Leaming Trus! manages canflicts of intarest by requesting declarations of interast from all
Trustess and SLT parsannel at the beginning of the academIC year Declarations of interest are also 3 standing
agenda item af sach governance meeling and all mambers aca fully aware of the requsremant to b transparent
gnd opan about any poasbie sanficis Nonham Lights Leaming Trusl doas not hawe any Ganersho of control of
subsdinres [oinl veniures Or BSSocioles.

Governance revigws.

A developng S-year plan & in place ‘of Nonnem Lights Learning Trust. This is reviewsd arnually with a cleaf
continued fooue on gowing the Trust, strengthening governance and ansurng thars afe aporoprale systams
and procedures to sustain madsured growth. These wers additional cernmitieas for the governance of the
Teaching School Hub and Eary Years Stronger Practica Hub and a working group focusng on Due Dikgence
fas contnusd s year An independent reniew of govarmnance was urdenaren by Confaderation of Schoal
Trusts and racommendations will contrus to be implementad mio 202425

The Firance, Audit and Risk Management Committes 1 8 sub-commdtes of ine main Board of Directors, [t
purpose m io ansure affective use of resources whilst seshing ways to Snsure oulslanamng and sustmnakle
provision anu Fhsnsgang any proposed rikE
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNAMNCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Govermance (continued)

Aniendance during the year at meelings was as follows:

Trusies Maatings anended Cut of a possible
P Ofsen (Chasr untd 26 March 2024) 3 B
M Wilkams (Chair from 27 March 2024) ] E
K Hammuand B f
J Brng 3 B
W Robears 3 G
Rewr O Tolhured | L]
J Heaton (cbsarvar crly) ] g

Review of valua for money

As accounting officer the CED has responsibiity for ensuring that the Trust defivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accountng officer undarstands that value far maney refars to educational and widsr
soceetal outcomes, as well as esiates safety and management. achieved in return for the axpayer resources
retiived

The Accounting Officer consigers how the Trust's use of ils resources has provided good value fer money during
8ach academic year and reports o the Board of Trustees where valug for money can be improved, inchading the
use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where approprate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has
deliverad improved value for money during the Waar by

* Continuing the contract for sports coaching under SLA saving on lunchiime suparvisary costs. whadgt
developing healthy physical activity. reducing incidents of poor bahawaur

+  Continual review of SLA'S to negohate savings and to streamiine contracts across the Trust Appointment of
apprentices 1o budd capacity and invest in siaff development

* (Collaborative working across the Trust 1o reduce guplicabion
Covenng temporary sta¥ absences imermally by relocating siaff io achiave savings across the Trys!

*  Covenng a vacant rols by sharing responsibility across existing staff with the key skills while recruitman
processss ware carmied out

* Restructunng of admin roles to mnimise [he nesd to recruil additional staff

*  Restructunng of Senicr Leadership Teams 1o ensure leadership capacity refaming existing $taff and ansuring
the best outcames for pupds
Revew of all vacancies 1o ensure roles ars relevant to current Trust position.
Appasntmant of a Direcler of Govermance
Using TCAF funding lo purchase additonal Every modules for the efficent and consislent managemant of
HR

The purpose of the system of internal contral

Tha system of intemal control s designed o manage nsk |o a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve polices aims ang ohjgciives It can, therafore only provide reasonsbls and nat sheahie
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal contral is based on an on-going process designed to idanlify
and prioritisa the nisks to the achevement of Trust policies. aims and obyectves to evaluate the fkelihood of
thosa risks being realised and the mipact should they be realissd. and 1o manage them aMicently. efectrvaly and
sconamically The sygtem of imemal contral has been in place in Morthem Lights Leameng Trust for the period 1
September 2003 1o 31 August 2024 and up {o the date of approval of the annual report and fnancial statemaents
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea}

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewad the key risks to which the Trust s exposea, together with ihe aperating
Rnancial and compliance controks that have bean implemented 1o mitigals those nsks. The Beard of Trustases is
of the view (hat there is a formal on-going process for dantifying, avalusting and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the penod 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 and up 1o the date of approval of
the annual fepart and financial stalements This process s regulary reviewed by the Boara ol Truatess.

Tha rigk and control framawork

Tha Trust's system of interral control s based on a framewods of regular managemant mformation and
administrative procedures mcludeng the segregation of duties and a system of delagation and accounability. In
particular, it mcludes

® comprehensive budgeting and montonng systems with an arinasd budget and penodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. reguiar reviews by the finance. audit and risk managemant commities of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of majer purchasa plans, capital works and axpenditure

programmes

satting largets o measure financial and other parfonmance

clearly definad purchasing (assat purchase or capital invesimani} guidehines

deiegation of uthority and segregabon of duties

idenbiication and managamant of nghs

& @ ® &

The Board of Trust=es has decidad to buy-in an ntemal audit senace from Azats

This cobion has bean chosen because it provides 80 indepandent opinion on tha systams applied within the
Trust.

The ntarmal audtsr's role includes giving advice on financisl matters and performing a range of checks on e
Trust's financal and otner systema. In particulad. the chedks camed autin tha current panod included

» Testing of payrofl sysiems
+ Testing of oaboarding of new schools into the payroll system
» Testing of risk managemant

The intermal auditor reports 1o the Board of Trustees. through the Firance Aidi and Risk Manageman!
commities on the cperation of the sysiems of conitral and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' firancal
responsibdies, On an annual bass the intarmal auditor prapares an annyal summary report 1o the commities
outkning the arsas reviewad key findings. racommendations and conciusions jo help the comimitise consider
actions and 355968 VA ON year progress

Tha intemal auditor has delivered their schedube of work as plarned and no significant control IS5UeE Wl
identfied

Page 22



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

COVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As Azcounting Officer. the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectivenass of the system of mtarmal
contrel, During the year in questan the review has bean informed by:

the work of the intermal auditar
the wark of the axecutive managers within the Trust who have responsitdity for the development and
maimensnce of the inlemnal contral framewenk

- the work of the axtarmal auditars

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of infemal
cantrol by the Finance, Audit and Risk Managament commitiee and a plan o address weakneases and ensure
cantinuous improvement of he 8yslem s in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audt and rgk commities and the #ccounting officer. 1ne Board of Trustees is of the
Cpinan that ke Trust has an adequate snd efactve framenwork for governance rek management and con bl

Appraved by order of the members of the Board of Trusiees on 12 December 2024 and signed an thair bahalf
by

- N
j FLe dle
o Heaton

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
|A Company Limited by Guarantes]

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Otficer of Northermn Lights Learming Trust | have considersd my résponsioiity 10 natify. e Trust
Board of Trusteas and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of matenal irraguiarity, impropriety and
nan-compliance wih terms and conaitions of all funding. including for estates safisty and managemant. under the
funding agreamant in place betwaan she Trus! and the Secratary of State for Education Aa part of my
consideration | have had due magard 1o the réquiremenis of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, inchiding
rasponsiiibes for estates safety and managament

| eonfirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustees are able o identify any malerial imegular or IMproper Use of all
funds by the Trust or materal ron-compliance wilh The isrms and conditions of funding under the Academy's
funding agreerment and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023

| confirm that no instances of material iregulanty, impropnety of funding nan-compliance have bean discovered
to date If any msiances ane identfied after tha date of this statement, these wil be notifisd to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA

:) He e

4 Heaton
Accounting Officer
Date’ 12 Decembat 2024
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees (who are aiss the dirsctors of the chantable company for the purposes of company law) are
raspansible for preparing the Trustses Report and the financial sistements in accordenca with the Academias
Accounts Diection published by the Education and Skifls Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Acceplsd Accounting Practice) and applicable faw and regulations

Company law requires the Trustees 1o prepare financial statements far 2ach financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial stataments unless they are sabisfied that they Qive 8 true and fair
wiew of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming ressurces and application of FEGOUICES
Incluging its mcome and sxpenditure, for that pefiod. In preparng these financial statemants. the Trusisas arg
reguirad to

* sedact sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

* cbsarve the methods and principles of the Chanties SORP 2019 and the Academies Acoounts Dwectian
2023 to 2024,
make judgments and accounting estimates that ace reasonable and prudent:
state whathet applicable UK Accounting Standards have bean followed, subject to any matenal departures
tdesclosed and explained in the financial statements;

*  prepare the fmancial gatements an the going concern basis uniess |t is inapproptiate o prasuma that (he
chantable company will cantinue in busmess.

The Trustees are responsibie for keeping adeguale accounting records that are sufficient fo show and explain
he chantable company's transactions and disclose with reasonabie accuracy at any time the financiai position af
ihe chantable company and enabie tham to ensurs that the financial statements comply weh the Companies Ac
2006, They are also rasponsibie for safeguarding the asseis of the chartable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevenbon and detection of fraud and other imegulantiss

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the chamable company applies
financial and other contrals. which conform with the requirements both of propristy and of good financial
managemant. They are also responsible for Ensurnng grants received from ESFA/DFE have been gpplied for the
PUrDOSES intended

The Trustess are responsible for the faintenance and wntegrty of the corporate and Financial mformation
mcluded on the chaniable company's wabsite Legisiation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparatian and
dasamination of financial statemants may diffar from legislaticn in other [urisdictions

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 December 2024 and signed on its banalf by

/Vm Lo (C/

K Hammond
iZnair of Trustees
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

Dpinion

We have audited the financial statements af Mortharm Lights Leaming Trust (tha “trust]) for the year endad 31
August 2024 which comprnse the Sigtement of Financial Activities, tha Balance Sheel tha Staternent of Cash
Flows and the related notes, indwmg-nmmﬂﬂwﬁmmmnmm The financiad reporsng
wmmmwﬂmﬂmurmﬁnumm.um Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice), mcludng Fmnancial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard apphcable n the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2018 and the
Academies Accounts Directon 2023 to 2024 ssued by the Education and Skills Fundeng Agency

In gur openion the financial staterments

s give a true snd fair waw of the state of the TrusCs sffairs as at 31 August 2024 and of ks iNCOMing rEsOUTces
and appbcation of resources, including s scome and expenditura for the year than ended,

« have been property prepared i accordance with Unitad Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Pracisa,
and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SCORP
2018 and the Academiss Accounts Dwection 2023 to 2024 issuad by the Education and Skills Fundng

Agency
Basis for opinion

We eanducted cur audil in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) |ISAs (UK)) and applcable
law Our responsibities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibiities for the audit
of the financal staterments section af our repart We are indepandent of the Trust in accordance with e ethical
requiremants that are relavant 1o our audit of the financial statements in fhe Untad Kingdom including the
Financial Reportng Councils Ethical Standerd. and we have fulfilled cwr other sthical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believa that the audit evidence we have cbtained s sufficien! and
approprate to provide 8 basis fior our epinion

Conclusisns relating Lo going concam

in auditing the financia! statements, wa have canclyded that the Trusteas' use of the going concem bDasis of
BCcounting in the preparation of the financal siatements is appropnake

Based on the work we have perfarmed, we have not identfed any rriatenal unceriartes relating 10 evenls of
conditions that indnadually or collectvely, may cast sgnificant doubl on iha Trust's abilty o confinue a3 & going
concem fior @ perod of at lsast twelve monihs from when the financial statements are authorsed for issue

(hut responsibiities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with reapect i going concem Bre described in the
redevant sechions of this repaort
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NORTHERM LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
1A Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report othér than the Rnancial
siataments and our Auditors’ Report thereon The Trustees are responsible for the othar miormation contained
within the Annual Reporl. Our opinion on the Rnancial siatements does not cover the other information and,
excepl (o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report. we do not exprass any form of assurance conclusion
therson, Our responsiility is to read the gther information and in daing s0, congider whether the othes
nformation s materially inconsisient with the financal stataments or gur knowledge obtained in the course of the
audt, or otherwise appears to be materlally msstated If we Identdy such material inconsistencias or Bpparent
material misstalemants, wa are requined 1o delermine whether His gives rige to @ matenal misstatement n the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have parformed, we conclude that there is 3 matanal
misstatemant of this other informabion, we are required o report that fact

We have nothing 1o report in thas regard
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companiss Act 2006

In our epinien. based on the wark urdertaken in the courss of the audit

* the information grven in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial yesr for which
the financial statamenis are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statemants.

* the Trustees' Report and the Sirategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the kght of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its emvironmant obtainad in the course of the
audit, we have not entified material misstatemants in the Trusiess' Repor including the Strategic Report,

¥ve have nothing o report in respect of the following matiess |n relaton to which the Companes Acl 2006
requires ug o report bo you . in our apirsan

* adequate accounting records have not been kepl, or raturns adequate for sur audit have nel besen raceived
from branches not visted by us. or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountng records and returns. or
canain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration spacified by law are not made: or
wi have nof recered &l ihe information and explanabans w8 require for our audit

Respansibilities of trustess

As explained mare fully n the Stalemen of Trustees' Responsibilibes. the Trustees (who are also the directars of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the praparaton of the financial stataments and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trusiees detsmine is
hecessary o enable the preparabion of financial siatements that are free frem material misstatement whether
dus 13 fracd of arrdr

In prepanng the financal statements. the Trustaes are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability o continue as
& goang concern, daclosing as applicable matters related to goung concarn and using the gaing concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees adher intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease cperatons, of have no realistic
alternative but fo do so.
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Dur objectives are 1o abtain reasonable sssurence about whether the financial statements as a whoie are fres
from matarial misstatament whether due to fraud of error and o issue an Auddors’ Report thal includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is @ high level of ssurance, but is not 8 guarantes that an audit conducted in
stcordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a matenal missistement when it sxists Misstaternents can arise
from fraud or eeror and are considerad material if, individuslly or m the aggregate, they could reasonably be
pxpected 1o influence the economic decisions of users takan o the basis of thedss financiaf statements.

Irraguianties, mcluding fraud, are Instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations. Wa deaign procadures
in line wih our responsibifties, cutined above, to detect material missistements in respect of megulanties
inciuding fraud Our audit must be alen 1o the riak of manipulation of the financial statemants and seek o
undarsiand e incantves and apporiurdes for managemant to achave this

Ve underiake the following procedures to identify and respond to these risks of non-compliance

= lnderstanding the key kegal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Trust We communicaled
idantfied laws and regulanons throughout the audit team and remained alest o any indications of
roncompliance throughout the audit, We determined the mosi significant of thess lo be the regulations sal
ot by the DFE/ESFA, Dur audit focyses on financial mafters &s sat out in our regulanty cginien. Othar key
iwws @nd regulations included safeguarding, Health & Safety GDPR and employrmant law

= Enguiry of trustess and managemant as o pobices and procedures o ensure compliance and any known
instances of non-complance
Reniew of board minutes and correspondence with reguiators
Enguiry of trustess and management as to aress of the financial statements susceptible 1o fraud and how
these naks ars managed

s Challenging managemernt on key eslimates assumptons and judgements made in the preparation of the
Enancial statements Thesa key areas of uncertainty are disclosad in the accounting palicies

« Identifying and testing unusual journal antres, with B particular focus on manual joumal entnes.

Through these procedures, we did not become aware of actual or suspected non-compliance

Wa planmed and pedformed our sudd in sccordance with auditing standards but awing 1o the inharent Emitataons
of procedures required in thase areas (here is an unavoidable risk that wa may not have detected & materal
mmatatarmant in the accounts. The further remoyed non-compliance with kaws and reguiations I& Irom 1he events
and transactions refached in tha financial statements. the less likely we would become awars of 1. The risk of not
detecting a matenal misstaternent due 1o fraud is highes than the risk of not detecting one resulling from efred, a3
fraud may involve concealment. collusion. forgary. misrepresentations, or override of nternal controls. We are
nol responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannol be expactsd 1o delact non-comphance with il Bws
and regulabions

A further deseriphon of aur resporaibiities for the audtt of the fnancial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Councls website ot www frcorg uk/audiiorsresponsbilties. This. descrption forms part of our
Auditors’ Report
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMEERS OF
NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

fullest extent permitied by taw we do nat accept or assume responsdbility to anyone other than the chantable
Trust and its membars. as a body. for our audil work, for this report. or for the opinions we have farmed

23 ;.1:1 Gran Lt [:

Kevin Shotton BA BFP FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and an baha¥ of

Clive Owean LLP

Chanlaned Accountants

Statutory Auditors

140 Coniscliffe Road

Darlington

County Durham

DLATRT
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes|

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

\n sccordance with tha terms.of our sngagement |efter dated 16 Saptember 2022 and further to the requinemants
of the Educaton and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) & inchided = the Acadamies Accounts Direction 2023 o
024 we have camed out an engagement 1o obtain limited assurance about whethed the expanditure disbursad
@nd income received by Mortharn u;ﬁuLummgTrunuumummlsmmwzuiamit August 2024
~ave pesn agplied to the purposes dentified by Parkament and the financial ransactions conform 1o he
autharibes which govern them,

This report is made solely 1o Northermn Lghts Learning Trust and ESFA in accorcance with the terms of our
angagement |attar, Our work has been sndertaken aa thit we rmight state to Morthern Lights Leaming Trusi and
ESFA thosa matters we are reguered 1o state in & repont and for no other purpese. To the fullest extent permitied
by law we do not sccepl or sssume responsibdity o anyone othaet than Norfhem Lights Leaming Trust and
ESFA for our work for this regort, or fof the conclusion we have formad

Respective responsibilities of Northern Lights Leaming Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible under the fequirements af Morinermn Lights Learming Trusts funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Educaton datad 23 Janusry 2012 and tha Acadermy Trusl Handbook

sxtant From 1 Saptermber 2021 for ensuring that expenditure disbursad and income recened is applisd for the
purposes intended by Parkament and the financial transachons confarm to the authorbes which govern them

Our responsibilties for this engagement are astabighed o the United Kingdom by owr profession’s ethecal
guidance and are to cbtain kmited aseurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 fo 2024 We report o you whather arything has come
bo sur attention |n campng out our work wivch suggests thal in all material respects expanditure disbursed Bnc
incame raceived dunng the year 1 Seglember 2023 1o 11 August 2124 have not bean appled to purposes
intended by Parlament or that the financial transactions oo not conform to the authorties which gavem them

Approach

We conductsd our engagement o accondanse with the Framawork and Guide for External Auditcrs ang
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued Dy ESFA Wa parformad a limited assurence sngagamant 83
defingd in our engagement |etter

The cojective of & limied assurance angagement is to parform such procedures as to obtan nformation snd
sxplanations in order o prowde us with sufficent approprate svidence to axpress @ negative conclusion on
reqularity.

A [Emited assurance engagement & more lmided in scope than @ reasonable assurance engagemeni and
consequently doss not enable us i obian assuranca thatl we would becoms aware of all significant matiars that
might be idenbfied in & reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly. we do not Bxpress 8 pasilive opinion

Our engagement includes examinabon on 3 lest bass. of gvidance retevant ta the regulanty and propnety of the
Trisls incoms and expanditure

The wiark Underzken (o Srew 1o our consiuson neiutes

Ravies of governing body and commities menuias

Revigw of termly Intarndl Assurance repoits

Completion of salf assessment guestionnare by Accounting Officer.

Rewvew documentation providad to Dirsctars and Accounting Dfficer sething out responsibities
Dibtasn farmal latters of representation detading the responsibiibes of Dinectors

Ravew of payroll purchases and éxpenses claims on & sampls DESIE

- anfirmation that the ines of delagabon and lirmits s8¢ have been achered 1o,

Evaluation of iIntamal control procedures and reporiing lirnes

Raview cagh payments for unusual iransachons,
Revaw ull cradif cmrd FaRRAcHoNE

@ om B @ W W @ W & &
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN

LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach (continued)

Review of registers of interasts,

Review related party ransactions,

Review of borrowing agreemants

Review of land and buldding fransactons:

Review of potential and actual bad debls:

Rewview an instance of gitshaspitality to ensure i line with poicy,
Review whislieblowing procedures

Review pay policy and factors determining executive pay

Review of staff expenses,

Raview cther income to ensure is i line with funding agreement.
Review governance structure and number of meetings heid and
Review whether thera is a risk register in place

Conclusian

In the course of our work nothing has come 1o our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expandifure disbursed and income received dunng the year 1 Saptembar 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied 1o purposes intended by Parkament and the financial fransachons da not canfarm fo tha authanties which
govern tham

Qs Ghan © 1)

Reparting Accouniant
Clive Crwen LLP

140 Coniscliffe Road
Darkngton

Courty Duirfam
DLATRT

ome ALY
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF FINANCLIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Note

Incoma and
endowma
from:
Dorations and
capial grants
Incorme from
ComyETsInn
Acguired fram
axisling
academy trust
Othar
donabons and

capital grants
Ciher trading
FCiivites 5
Inyestmanis L
Chantabls
acinnbes 4
Trust
educaticnal
operations
DME hubr
Total incoma

and
gndowmanis

Expenditure
an:
Raisirg funde

Chariabis
actnaties

[

Total
expanditurs

Mei

{expenditureiin
come

Transfers

petwean funds 17
Mel mavement

Im funds bafore
othar

recognised
gains/losses)

Page 12

Fesncted

Unrastncted  Rasincted fined aasa Endowrmani Total Tiot=d
funds funds funds funds funds furnds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
E000 EDD0 £000 £ 000 £000 ECD0

255 (51T #as7 - E538
176 11 9067 &27 10.381 2435
- 12 733 - 745 151
ATY - BTe 350
i4 103 17T 3
THBS 22878 - 23 70 14 434
B 1126 - 11338 &73
1.983 74 151 18857 67 45 188 18,041
30 - - 30 25
2 19T 23877 554 - iT 228 1,000
2.827 23877 554 27258 15,025
(874 274 18,103 827 18230 2 01&E

(23] 83 - -

(874 181 18.188 H2T 18 130 2118



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Restriclad
Unrestricted  Restricied fixed assaf Endowimani Total Totsl
funds funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Mole EQOg E00DQ ECGD EO00 £000 EQQO
Other
recognised
pains/(losses):
Aciuanal gans
on cefined
banafil pension
schemes 24 - goT - . BT 2 545
Assal cading
rastriclian - (832} s . (932} (1858
Nt movament
in funds {BT4) 58 18,188 BZ7 TB,008 2 B04
———y = = — _————— e e
Reconciliation
of funds:
Total funds
brought farward 2. 400 s B 39 - 8387 B 793
N&t movemant in
fursds [BT4) 55 18, 155 gz7 18.005 2.604
Total funds
carried forsard 1.528 114 25135 B27 27 402 8397

The Statement of Financial Activibas mcludes al gains and losses recogrised in the year

The ncies on pages 36 to 70 form part of these fingscial stalements
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

{& Company Limited by Guarantee|
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07903140

BALAMNCE SHEETY
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023
Moda £000 000
Fluad asssts
Tangible assets 14 24 548 B 483
24 548 6 483
Currant assets
Ombtors dua within 1 year 15 1.E34 2.8TZ
Cash at pank and in hand 3 101 2431
4 3349 B 303
Crediors. amounts faling due within one
year 18 {2 083 {2,389
et curmant assais 2 B56 2014
Total assets less current liabilities 27 402 B g7
Net asssts sxcluding pension sssel 27 402 g.347
Total netl assets 27403 8397
Funds of thae Trust
Encawnant funds 1T 627
Restricied funds:
Fixad sgaat funds 17 25135 5938
Restriciad income funds 1T 194 58
Total restricied funds 17T 25 349 8 64T
Unrestricted incoma funds 17T 1,536 2 400
Total funds 27 403 8387

Tha financial siaiements on pages 32 1o 70 were approved by the Trustses and autnansed for msue on 12
December 2024 and are signad on their behall, by

Crar of Trugless
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023
Meite E000 EQOD

Cash flows from operating activities
Mel cash provided by operating activibes 13 48 245
Cash flows from investing activities 20 B22 993
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 870 1,842
Cash and cash squrvalents at the beginning of the year 2431 455
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 21,22 3,101 2431
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies

14

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been appilec consistently.
pxoepl where noted). udgments and key sources of astimabon uncertainty. is set oul below

Basis of preparation of financial siatements

The financial siatements of the Trust which & a public benefit entity undar FRS 102 have baen
prepared under the historic cost convention in gooordancs with the Financsl Aepoding Standard
Appiicatie in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). the Accounting and Reporting by Charties
Stgtement of Recommanded Practce appicable to charfies prepaning heir accounts in pccordance
with the Financal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102
{Charties SORP (FRS 102)) the Academses ACcounts Direction 2023 o 2024 ssued by ESFA the
Charties Azt 2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

Going concern

The Trustees assass whethar the use of gaing concemn 15 appropnate | e whether thare are any
matanal uncertaintes ralated to sverts or conddions thal may cast significant doubl on the ability of
the Trust 1o confinue Bs 8 going concarmn, The Trustees make this assessmant in respec! of & penod
of a1 least one year from the date of authorisation for ssue of the financal statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adeguate rescurces b contnue in operational existence for the
foreseeable huture and there are no matenal uncerainties about the Trusts ability to conbnua a5 @
gaing concern thus they conbnue lo adopt the going conoam basie of accounting in preparing ihe
financial stalemants

ineoma

Afl incoming resgurces #re recognised when the Trust has entitemant fo the funds, the receipl @
prabatle ard the amaunt can be measured relably

Grants

Grants are included in tha Staleman! of Financial Activiies on & receivable bass. The balance of
ineoma receved lor specfic purposes but not expended dunng the penca s shown in the relevant
funds an the Balance Shest Whers income is recerved in sdvance of meeting any parformance-
related conditions there is net uncondhonal entitemant to the income and i1s recognition is dalprad
and included in creditors as defered income until the performance-related conditions ara mal Weers
entitiamant occurs before ncoma i recaied the income |S Accrued

Ganeral Annical Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financiel Activities in the yoar far which
it 15 receivatis 8nd any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognesed as
a llmbiliby

Capital grants are recognisad in full when thers s an uncondtional entitiement 1o the grant. Linspent
amounts of capital grants are reflactad in the Balance Sheet in the restnciad fced assel fund. Capisl
grants are recognised when there is antilement and are not defermed aver ine He of the assel on
whiich they are expended.

Denations

Clonations ars recogrised on B recevable bass (where thers are no performance-related condibons)
where [he recespt s probable and the amount can be relably heagured

Other income

Dther meome. incluging the hure of fackibes s recognsed in the year it & recenvable and to the exient
the Trust has prowided the goods or senices
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policlies {continued)

1.4

Income (continued)

Transfer on converaion

¥ihare assels and kabiblies are receved by the Trust on conversion to an acagamy, the transferred
assals are maasured al fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet atl the point when the risks
&nd rewards of ownership pass to the Trust An equal amount of income s recognised as o transfer
on conversion within ‘Incomea from Donations and Capital Grants’ to 1he nel assats recaived

Tranafer of existing academies into the Trust

Where assets and liabilibes ara recesved on the transfer of an existing academy mnto the Trust the
transferred net sssels are measured at fair value and recognised in the halance sheet at the point
when the risks and rewards of ownership pass io the Trust. An equal amount of income s recognised
for the ransfer of an existng academy into the Trust within Dorations and capial grant income 1o the
nel assets acquired

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive cbhgabon fo transfer econormic benefil
to & third party. it is probabile that a transfer of sconcmic banafits will be required = sattlament anad
the amaount of the obligation can be measyred rlianly

Expanditure :s classified by actrity The costs of sach activity are made up of the iotal of sireel cosls
and shared costs, including supporl costs wwolved i undertalong each actwly. Direct costs
atnbutable to a single activity ate allccated duwectly to that activity Shared costs which contribute o
mare than one aclivity and suppon costs which are not stiributable to & single activity are apportioned
between those achvilies on a basis consistent with the use of resourcas Central stafl cogts are
sifocated on the baws of me spent. and depraciation charges allocated on tha particn of the assars
Lisa

All resources expended are inclusive of imecovarabla VAT

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitsbile purposes and
ncludes costs of all fundraising activibes events and nan-charitable frading

Charitabla activitiss

These are cosis incurred on the Trusts educational oparabans, including support costs and cosis
relating to the governance of the Trus! apporiioned 1o chartabile sctivibes
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accaunting policies [continued)

1.5

1.8

1.7

1.8

Tangible fized assats

Assets costng £500 or more are captalised as tangible fixed assets and are carred al cost, net af
depreciation and any provision fior impaimment.

Mwmﬁ:ﬁdmnmbnnmquuldmhhlum‘mﬂ:m.m-rrmmm
govermment of from the private sector they are included in the Balance Sheet al cost and
MMMrWumimmtﬁe.MMwmmwﬂkmulmm
the funding requinng the contnued use of he asset the related grants are credilad 1o @ resincled
fixed asset fund n the Statement of Financial Acthaties and camed forward in the Balance Sheel
wmhMMLMhWMWm-deﬁmmmndlnm
Statement of Financial Actvities. Whare tangiie fixad assets have been acquired with urrestricied
funds depreciation on such assets (s charged to the unresincted fund

Degreciation s provided on all tangeble fixad aseets other than freshold Wand and assets under
construction. at ‘ates calculated io write off the cost of each gsset on a straight-hne basis ovar its
sxpected useful Ife, as follows

Depreciabion is provided on tha fallowng basss

Leasehold land - 125 years straight hne
Leasehoid buildings - 47 years straight ine
Leasshold building - 40 years straight line
Impravamanis
Fixtures, fitings & equipment - 53-8 years straight ling
Computer aquipmant - 3 yaars straght line
Motor venicies - & years strasght e
Liabliities

Lisbilties are recogrised when there & an obligaton at the Balance Sheet date 8s 5 resull of a pas!
svent it s probable thal a transfer of economic banefit will ba required in sattlement. and (he amount
aof fhe settlement can be estmated reliably Lisbiibes are rmcognised st the amouni that the Trust
anticipatas £ will pay to sattie the debt or the amount i has recenved as advanced payments for the
quﬁdimlﬂrwkﬂlltmuﬂp!mldnWﬂhﬂldﬂﬂhﬂ“ﬁﬂﬂfﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂlmlﬂﬂﬂ the
pravision s based on the present value of those amounts, discountad &t the pre-tax descounl rata that
reflects the nsks specific 1o the bablity. The unwnding of the discount s recognised within tates!
payable and simiker charges

Provisions

Brgvisions are recogrised when the Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as 8 result of a pas!
event which il i4 probabée will rasult in the transfer of economic benefits and the ooligation can be
estmated reliably

Provisions are measured 8l the best satmate of the amounts requited to sefile the cbligation Whes
tha afact of tha tme value of menay is matenal, the provision is based on (he present value of those
amounts, discourisd st the pre-tax discourt rate that reflacts the risks specific 1o the lisbddy The
urswending of the deecount 1§ recognisad within mileres! payaole and similar charges

Operating leases

Rantals payable under operahng leases are charged SgaNs! iNCOME on @ Straighl-kne basis over the
pariod of 1he Bases
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MORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Financial instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assals and
financial labilities of the Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial agsels - trace and other debiors are basic fnancial insfrumants and are debt irirurmEns
measured al amorksad cost as detaded in note 15 Prepayments are not financial instrumants

Cash &l bank 15 claasfied as a basic financial instrument and is measured af lace value
Financiai labiites - trade crediors, accruals and other credilors are financial instruments and are

measused at amortised cosl 8s delailed in note 16 Taxation and social security are nat included in
the financial instruments cisciosyre definition

1.10 Taxation

The Trust is considesed 1o pass the tests s&1 out in Paragraph 1 Schadule & of the Finanee Act 2010
Bng therafore it meats tha definiion of a chantable company for UK corporation fax PUIpOsEs
Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempi from taxation in respect of incoms or caplal gans
receivad within categones covered by chapler 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Saction
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1982 to the extent that such income or Qains are
eppbed éxclusively to chartable purposes

1.11 Pensions benafits

Retrement benefits 1o employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pengon Schame
('TPS) and the Lecal Govemnment Pension Schama (LGPE). These are defined benafit schames
and ihe assels are held separalely from those of the Trust

The TPS s an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as 1o spread the cos! of
pensicns over amployees wonong lives with the Trust in such @ way that the pension cost is &
substantially level percantage of current and fulure pensionable payroll The contnbubons are
seterminad by the Government Acluary on the bass of quadrennial valuations using 3 prospectve
unil credit method. TPS is an unfunded mult-employer schema with no undedying assets 1o assign
between emoloyers. Consequently the TPS o treated as a defined contrbution schema for
accourtng purposes and the contributions recognisad in the panod to which they ralate

Tha LGPS = a funded multi-employer schema and the assets are hald saparaiely from those of the
Trust in separaln trustee administerad funds. Pansion scheme assels are measurad at far vabus and
liabdites are measured on an actuanal Dasis using the projeciad unil credit mathod and digcaunted af
a rate squivalent 1o the currant rate of return an @ high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currancy to the kabilties. The acluanal valuabons are obiained a1 leas! trennially and are updated ar
each Balance Sheet cate The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs
and the costs of scheme mtroductions. benefit changes, sefflemants and curtaiimen's They arzs
included as part of staff costs as incuried. Net interest on the nel defined banafit liakilily/asset is also
recognised in the Statamant of Financial Activien and comprees the inleresl coal an tha defmed
benafit obdigation and mterast income on the scheme assets, calculated by multplying the fair value
of the scheme assels at the begnning of the penod by the rate used to dwscount the benefit
obkgations The difference between the inlefest income on the scheme assets and the actual ratum
on the schame asseis is recoghised @ other recognised gains and Iosses
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting palicies (continued)

1.12 Conversion to an academy trust

The canversion from a state mantaned school o 2 Trust invehed the transfer of (dentfistle assats
and lishities and the operation of the schoal for ENIL consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of @ gt and it has baen accounted for on that bass 2s e oul beiow

The sssats and liabidities transferred on conversion from Grange Primary School to the Trust have
haan valuad af their fair value, Tha fair value nas been darved based on that of equnalent fems
The amounts have besn recognised under the appropriate Balance Sheet categores with a
comesponding amaunt recognised in Income from Donations and Capdal Grants in the Statamant of
Financigl Activites and analysed uncer unresincted funds resiricted general funds and restncted
fixed asset funds

Further datails of the transachon are sat out in note 28
1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricied income funds regresent those resources which may be usad lowards meating any of the
charitable cojects of the Trust at the decretion of the Trustees

Rasiricted fived ssset funde ame rescurces which are 'o be appled to specific capital purposes
mposad by tha Funders whars the asse! acquimed or created is held for a specific purpose

Restricted general funds comprise ad other resincled funds recerved with restnchons imposed by the
funderidonor and include grants from the Educaton and Skills Funding Agancy, Deparmant for
Education and Local Autharty

Critical agcounting sstimates and areas of judgmant

Accountng estimates and judgemants are contnually evaluated and are based on Pusinnical saperiance
and other faciors indiuding expectations of future events that sre believed fo be reasonable under the
gircumstances

Critical accownting estimaies and assumpbons

The Trust makes estmates and assumptions concermng the future The resulting accounbing esbmates
and assumptons will by defindion, seldom aqual the related actual resulis. The sstemates and
assumptions that have a significant nek of cousng a material adjusiment to the carmyng amounts of
gesats and Esbiliies within the ne Tnancial year are discusied balkmnw

The present value of the Local Governmeni Pension Scheme cefined benefit kabity depends on a
aumber of factors that are determined on an actuaral basis using a vanety of Essumplions The
assumptions used in determiming the net cost of income for pensions include the discount rale. Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed m note 24 will impact tha carryng amaunt of he
pangion Nabifty Furthermors 3 rod forsard approach which projects results from the intest full sctusrcesl
valuation parformaed at 31 March 2022 has been wsed by the actuary in valuing the pensions kebility st 31
August 2024 Any diffsrences between the figures derivad from the roll forward approach and a full
aciuanial valuabon would mpact on the carming amaunt of the pension liabilty
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment [continued)

The ongnai local Governmen! Pansion scheme valuations showed an asset of E2.830k. That asset
valuation Is highly dependent on a number of assumptions and does nol represent the future value of
benefits to the Trust As a result the Trustees commissionad a valuation of the potanial benefits 1o the
Trust - asset ceiling valuatron Based on mnimum funding requirements far cantributions relating to future
sarvice Ihis showed 8 potential asset of £2,800k. Given the value of this combsned with the fact that the
last Lecal Government Scheme actuarial review set the contribubian rates from 1 Agril 2023 and that these
will not be revised untl April 2028 the Trustees have decded to include the pEnson ess5e1 @ Enil in
respact of this scheme

Goodwin - The case relaled to male spouse or civil parrer of a female mamber is treated in the saire way
4% a3 same-géx spouse o civil pariner. Surviver benefits will be calculated using sanvice from 1 Apnl 1973
o & Apnil 1978 ff the marrage or civil partnership took place after the last day of pensionable sarvice. This
change wll apply for deaths in respect of female members which occurred fram 5 December 2005, wrieh
1% the date that same-sex civil parinerships were introduced. This case was Brought against the Teachers'
Penmon Scheme Actuanes have eslimated that the mipact of Goodwin indexation fo be less than 0.1% of
iciad liabilities. Based on this estimaie i would increass kabilities by £1 813 which has besn sssessad f
be immatenal ta ihe fmancal siatements

Depreciation — Depreciabion s calculated 50 @8 to wriite off the cost of an Essel. kess s residual valus
over the economic life of that assst An estimats of the useful Iife of assels s detaled in tha depreciaton
accounting palicy. The value of depreciation charge during the year was E584 000

Critical areas of udgemant

Leng- Land is held under 125 ymar lease(s) fram Sunderiand Cay Council, Siockton Borough Counel,
Hartlepcal Borough Council and Darington Borough Councdl, Thase assets are included on tha paiance
sheat of the Trust due to the significant risks and rewards of ownership belonging 1o the academy. the
lease larm being the major part of the economic iife of the assets and the sssets being of such g
specialised nature that only the academy could use them without majer modification

Buildings- Buddings at Hart St Helen's. Halley Park and St Aidan's are heid under 125 yERAr lsaseis] from
Sunderiand City Council. Hartlepool Borough Council and Darfington Borough Council. These assefs are
meluded on the balance shest of the Trust due 14 the significant nsks and rewards of ownershio belonging
0 the academy the lease term being tha major part of tre economic Ife of the assets and the assets
being of such a specialissd natura that only the acadery could use them withou! majss modificasion

The buildings ai the Diocesan schools are owned by the Durham Diocese Board of Finance ithe DODBEF|

Tha Trust occupies the bulldings under 8 mers license. The licence delegates aspects of the management
of the buildings 1= the Trust for the tme besng. but does not vest any rights over the buildings to the Trusl,
The Durham Diocese Beard of Fimance has given an underaking to the Secratary of State that they wdl
not geve Trust less than two years notice to 1erminate the occupation of the buddings Hawving congiderad
the factyal matrix under the Trust is occupying the buildings. the Directors have consiuded that the value
of the builtngs occupied by the academy trsut at the date of conversion io an academy will nol ba
recogmised on the balance shee! of the Trust In addition. whilst the cccupation consthvies a donation in
kind 12 the Trust the Trustees consider that the cast of obtainng & valuation for such a donation outweighs
the expense and therefore no such donabon and related expense are included n ihe Statament of
Financial Actates. Addibons since convarsion furded by grant bids or fvorm GAG have been capitaksad
as leasehold improvements and written off ovar their economic lile
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGUST 2024

Income from donations and capital grants

Restrctad
Linresinctad Restricted  fived assst  Endowmant Total Tatal
funda Funds funds furds furds funds
2034 J024 il | 1024 2024 2033
EQoD EGDD £000 E000 E£000 £000
Donations
Ircarme on
Ciorveargsan 288 (517 a.857 B 535
Income on
transier 178 811 o DET 627 10,381 2435
Subrotal
detalled
discloguirs ATE -] 17 624 627 15,020 2435
Dther Dorations - 12 . - 12 14
Capital Granis - T3 - T3 137
Subtotal 12 733 . T45 151
475 B 18.65T a7 16, 785 2.588
. — — s _____ — B
Toigl 2023 654 24 1.611 - 2 588
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Funding for the Trust's charitable activities

Unresincted  Restncted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 E£000 EQDD EQ00
Academy's educational operations
DIE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) 18 848 18,646 11.159
Othar DFE/ESF A grants
Start Up Granis - 23 23 -
Pupil Premium . 894 uog BT
PE and Spon Premsum B1 21 B3
UIFSM 153 153 148
Rafes 113 113 £g
Grants for Trust Activity 139 189 .
Insurance B g b
Teachers pay grant & 138 335 3
Teachers' pangan grant - 186 196 g
Cthar OIE/ESFA granis - 18 18 158
Supplemeantary gran! - * - 2TH
Mainstraam School Additional Grant 654 BE4 247
= 21418 21418 12,800
Other Governmant grants
SEN 340 340 240
Early Years Funding . TaE T28 551
Local authority grants - 114 114 78
Other govarnment grants B g0 F
1.273 1273 B
Other iIncome from the Trust's sducational
operations 785 73 as5a 618
COVID-19 additional funding (DFE/ESFA)
Other ME/ESFA COVID-18 furding t1ha 182 137
= 152 164 137
785 22918 23,7 14 424
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Funding for the Trust's charitable activities (continued)

Teaching school hub

[ME/ESFA grants
Other mcome

Total 2023

Income from other trading activities

Incame from facilities and sernces
Mon student catenng income
Rental and lettings income

Recsipts from Supply Teacher Insurance claims

Oy

Tivtad 2023

Unrestncted Rastricied Total Tatal

funcs. funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2023

E0CG £000 £000 £000

- 818 B1g 601

- aor aov T

- 1,126 1126 673

-] 24 042 24 827 15.097

———— eeee—————— - —— 31
525 14,573 16,097
—— e

Unrestricted Taotal Total

fumnds funds funde

024 2024 2023

E00 £000 £000

302 302 113

1 1 2

i F |

B5 G5 s

Eh 059 210

a78 &79 350

_——— m—————— =
350 150
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2024

Investment income

Unrestncied Restncted Todal Tatal
funas funds funds funds
024 2024 2024 2023
E£000 E£300 E0CD EDoa
Short term daposis 14 - 14 B
Perglon moome s 103 103 -
14 103 117 |
. ———— _——  —— E—
Tatal 2023 8 i
_— — e
Expanditure
S:aff Coain Premsasy Ofhiat Total Toial
2024 024 2024 2024 2023
£000 EQDQ £000 EQQD ECDD
Expenditure on fundraising
Irading actwiies
Allocated suppan costs - - 3o a0 25
Trust's ecucatanal cperalbons:
Cirect costs 17,611 - 1 764 19,375 11275
Allocated support costs 2510 1,693 2.580 5.783 4 D77
Deract cosis - DE hubs
Direct coats ird . 2 ATd 203
Adocated suppont costs 121 18 L 696 455
20614 1,711 4 93%F 27 258 18,025
e ———— B8 - [ ——--—— = - —— ]
Tedal 2023 12,058 1276 2830 16,025

!
|
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Exponditure (continued)

In 2024 of the iotal expanditure. £2 B27 000 (2023 £648.000) was 10 ynresincied funds, E554 000 (2023
£288 000) was ta restricted fixed asset funds, ENil (2023 ENI) was 1o endowment funds and
£23.877.000 (2023 £15.092 D00} s 1o resthicied funds

Tham were no ndividual ransactions exceeding £5.000 for
- Compansation payments

« [3ifts made by the Trust

- Fined asset lossas

- Gtock iogees

= Unrecoverable debis

- Caah lopssas

There were no ex-gratia payments made during the year

Analysis of sxpanditure by activities

Suppor Total Tatal

Diirect Costs costs funds funds

2024 2074 2024 2023

gnog £000 000 €000

Trust's aducatonal oparahons 18375 ET83 28 158 15,352
Direci cosis - OFE hubs 1Td B3 1.070 A48
19 740 T4TR 27 228 16.000

Total 2021 11,568 4 432 18,000
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)
Analysis of direct costs

Trusts

educaticnal Tatal Tatal
oparations DIE hubs tunds funds

2034 Z024 2024 2023

£000 £000 ECO0 E£000

Slaff costs 1T 811 kT 17.883 10.502
Edveationai supplies 366 - 366 478
Examinapon faes Fi - 288 1819
51 davelopment 9 2 gd a8
Technology costs Td = T4 11
Educational cansuflancy 15 - 196 120
Transoor 158 . 1559 E1
Cither diract cogts RET - a87 138
18,375 374 18.748 11,554

Total 2023 11,278 243 11,568
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HORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Analysis of expenditure by activities [continued)

Analysis of support costs
Trust s
achucational Towal Total
ooeratans OfE hubs fungs furds
204 2024 2024 2021
ECOD £0040 EDDD EDOQ
Pangion finance cosls - . z B
Support stafl costs 2510 121 3831 1,857
Depraciation 554 - 554 285
Siaff development 3 a .
Tachnology costs 380 7 387 218
Siafl expendes 43 4 52 &5
Supply insurance 121 i1 48
Transport 4 5 - 10
Pramises costs 156 ZbE i92
Claarmng 154 - 154 115
Crhai premises Cos1s 265 - 286 142
Energy BIT - 527 3s2
Rant and rates 142 18 180 145
Ingurance 86 - BE 48
Catering 1 032 - 02 aE2
Legal costs B - B -
Legal costs - atner 141 288 429 iz
Beurity 17 5 AT id
Orthar support o518 443 253 TH2 401
Govemance oost S8 - e n
E.783 58 TATS 4432
) —_— e —_—

Total 2023 4077 i85 i 432
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Net (expenditure)income

Net (expenditure income far the yaar \ncludes

Cpevating lease rentats
Depreciancn of tangibie fixed assats
Fees paid to auditors for

- @udi
- Siher saneces

Staff

a. Staff costs and employes banelits

Staff costs durng the year were as follows

Wages ana satanas
Social secunty costs
Pengion costs

Agency stalf costs
Staff restructuring costs

Inchuded in operating costs of defined Pensan schemes is a charge / icredit) of £28 Do) (2023

£214 000) retating to the pension deficit aciural adusiment

Staff restruciuing costs COMprise

Severance payments

b. Spacial staff severance payments

Incluged in statf Fesirutiunng costs are special saveranca paymenis totalling Emil (2023 £30 600
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£000 E00Q
21 -
554 285
23 18
4 F
—_— e
2024 2023
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1d15 B
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Staff (contimuad)
¢, Staff numbers

The average number of persens employed by the Trust durng Ine year was as follows

2024 2023

Mo Na

Teachas 165 108
Administration ang Suppon 258 186
Maragement 38 22
483 316

——

d. Higher paid staff

The rumber of ampioyees whose employes benafits (exclyding amployer pension pOsts) oxcasced
ERD 000 was

2024 2023

Mo Mo

in the band £60 001 - £70.000 14 3

s the band E70.001 - £80,000 3 2
in the pand £80,001 - £90.000 3 -
in the band £90 001 - £100 000 3 .

in the band £100001 - £110.000 1 !
1 5

Iry {he Band £120 001 - £130.000

g Key managemaent personnel

The key managemani personnel of the Trust comprse the Trusiees and ine corpofalm S&NiDT
management 1gam a8 listad on page 1 The key managemsent personnel also includes ihe sxecutive
samor leadership ieam The totsl amount of smployes banafits {including employer pension conirbubons
and employer national nsurance contribulions) received by key management personnel for their servces
1o the Trust was £3 BD4 000 (2023 - £2 321.000)
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Central services
The Trust has provided the following central services o s acacermies during the year

HR advice and Inbunal insurance
payroll

finance (accounting/audt services, budgeting software|
MAT governance

safeguarding

health and safety

trust weksits hasiing

0P SLA

ICO registration

CEOQ performance management
schoal improvemant

The Trust charges for thase services on the fallowing bass
* flat percentage of GAG income 5 5%

The actual amounts charged dunng the year ware as follows

2024 2023
E000 £000
Hart Primary School 30 a2
ot Petar's Elwick C of E Primary School 28 29
Benedict Biscop C of E Academy 65 &0
5t Helens Primary School B85 |
Heolley Park Acadamy = E5
Venerable Bade CE Acadamy o 182
lan Ramsey CE Academy 445 232
Grange Prmary Schoof 38 -
St Aldan's Academy 51 -
1,080 a7t

Trustees' remuneration and SEpENEES

Dne of more Trustees has been Paid remunaraton or has recerwed othar benefits fram an employment
with the Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only recerve remuneration in respect of services
they provide underaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracis of amployment.
The value of Trustees’ remuneration and other banafite wan ss follews

2024 2023

EQnn £000

4 Featon {Accounting Officer. CEQ] Remuneraticn 125 - 130 105 = 110
Fension contributions paid 30 - 35 25 . 30

Dunng the year trusiees were reimbursad £4.000 (2023 £1.000) in travel expenses No other expenses
were resmbursed 1o Inustees
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARMING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Trustees” and Officers’ iInsurance

Tre Trust has opted mto tha Department for Education’s nisk protection
to insurance whare LUK govemmant
officers from ciaims ansing from negligant acts,
husiness. and provides cover up to £10 000,000, It is not porssibbe o

ndamnity slemant from the overall cosl af the RPA scheme mambarihip

arrangement (RFA), an altematys
funds cower losses that anse This scheme

protacts Trustees and

arors of omissions occuming whilst on peademy
quantfy the Trusises and officers

Tangible fixed assets
Leasahald Laasahald Fumiture,
land and bulldngs Computer  fitinga & Matar
bufidings improvemenis  egquipmant equipmant vehicles Tatal
E000 £000 [ 1] £000 £00a £500
Cost
At 1 Saplember 2023 5374 1 054 a8 451 - T84T
Additions - 400 182 111 - 83
Acqumincns B 734 187 127 ] 80687
Acquired on
convarsion B BsT7 - - - B 857
At 31 August 2024 27965 1454 {017 =125 El A6 134
Dapreciation
At 1 September 2023 274 55 540 S = 1.034
Charge far the yesr 285 28 218 43 1 554
Al 3% Augusl 2024 534 Ha 556 408 1 1 528
Mt book value
&b 31 Augusd 2 22 478 1,370 451 Fi. b L] 24 548
b= —— 1 ———— —— —————— ——————
Al 31 August 2022 5100 909 158 B& E 483
= —— | —— e ——— T —
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debiors

Cither debtors

Prepayments and sccrued income
Val recoversble

Creditors: Amounte falling due within one year

Trade crediiors

Other taxation and social SECURY
Crher cradiars

Accruals and delerrad incomea

Deferrad income at ¢ Saptember 2023
Resources defarred durng the year
Amounts released fram previous pesfiods

Deferred income a1 31 August 2024

2024 2023
EO £000
136 258
T -
1387 4025
2B8 5849
1,838 2872
2024 2023
ECSO £000
841 TO7
82 274
- I
860 1,381
2,083 2384
L~ ] e s—————
2024 20#3
E000 0oL
166 BA
182 186
[1E88) {38
182 166

Al the year end the Trust was holging universal infant free school meals and ofner smaller grants relaing

12 the next academic year
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaraniee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Statemant of funds
Balance at 1 Batarce al
Seplembpan Transfars Gans/ 31 Augus!
2023 Income Expendiure infout (Losses) 2024
E0C0 Edod EDO0 Enoa £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
Ganesal Funds 2400 1,853 (2 B2T| . - i 838
Endowmant
funds
Endowment
Fiand G527 i - 62T
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
GrantsiGAG) 18 646 i 485530 =y -
Pupid Framium - 994 (98 - -
Cithar LHEESFA
Granis - 17173 (1773 =
Cithar
Gonvsrmmant
Grams. 333 {833 - -
SEM - 340 (340
Oiibar OFES
ESFA COMNID-18
funding 152 [153) _
CFfE Hubs 58 1126 (1070 - 114
Donations 12 (1235
Clithad iACome - T3 {7 = =
Pension resens T 28 - [125]
58 24 151 (23877 83 (125 114
Restricted fizsd
asaet funds
inhanjed an
conversion 8220 17,164 (430 - = 22 854
&fE group
cagntal grants 452 g8 -] - 1.128
Capital
gxpandiure from
GAG 427 FEF L&Y B3 o2
Local suthanty
wautal grants ac {18} i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Statement of funds (continued)

Baltanca at 1 Balance at
SEpiember Tranafers Gains! 31 August
2023 Income Expenditurs imfout iLossas) 2024
E000 £000 EDOD £000 £004 EQO0
Prvate sector
capital
sponsorshg - 118 - 110
6,935 18 B57 (554 a3 25138
Total Restricted
funds 6957 42 808 (24 431) {125} 25,249
Total funds 8387 45 388 {27 258) {125) a7 402
— ] —— e = = — ———— e
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 AUGUST 2024

Statement of funds {continued)
The specfic purposes for which the funds are 1o be apphad ane as follows

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the nomal running of the academy including salarnes
and related costs overheads repairs and mainianance. and insurance

Tha Mainstream Schools Addtional Grant (included withm Other DFE/ESFA Grants) scdinonal fundsng
to be used for the same purposes as the GAG

The TCaF grant is funding to aid the deveiopment of tha Trust as it graws with the addilan of new schools
during tha year

Pupil Pramium & addtanal funding 1o be spent as the school seas fit io support deprived studants

Univarsal |nfant Free School Meals (inciuded within Ofer [ME/ESFA Grants) is funding 1o prowide & free
sehool lunch to all pupils in reception. year 1 and year 1

Ciinar DIE/ESFA Grants also inchedes the PE and spon pramium grant, rates relief teachers’ pay grant
and teachers pension grant

SEN funding is used to provice adddonal support for pupss with agdtonal nescs

Other Sovernment granis include Early Years funding far three and four year old children and othar
incarne fram the local suthority

The persion resan/es (s the habiiy due 12 the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme. Further
detmdls arm shown in nole 24

The rastricied fixed asset funds represent monies received to purchase fived assets Deprecation is
charged against sach fund cver the useful aconamic ife of the Sssociated assels

Unrastricied furds include the income from uniform sates, school Ings and catesing with the relevant costs
allocated accordingty

The sndowrrent fungd represents Megincied monies recerved dunng the year on trangfer of 51 Aldan's
Academy

A transier of £82 000 has bean made to capital expendiute from GAGS 1o reflect thoae tems iAcluoad
within fixed assets which have besn purchased using GAG monias

Under the funding agreemeni with the Secralary of Slale the Trus! was not subject 10 a md an (ne
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2024
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Statement of funds (continued)

Lomparatise information in respect of the preceding vear 1§ as folliows

Unrestricted funds
Gensral Funds

Raestrictod general funds

General Annual Grants(GAG)
Pugsd Pramism

Diher DFE/ESFA Grants
Othar Governmant Grants
S5EN

Other DfE/ ESFA COVID-18
funding

Non governmaent non grani
income

DfE Hubs

Donations

Funds raceived on conversion
Pension ragerye

Restricted fixed asset lunds

Infranted on conversian

DfE group captal grants
Capital expendilure from GAG
Local authonty capital grants

Total Restricted funds

Towal funds

Batance at Balance ai
! September Gains! 31 August
2022 Income  Expangilure [Lesses) 2023
EOCO E£000 £0100 EDDOQ £000
1.2%4 16834 (E48) - 2400
- 11,158 {11.158) - .
Bi7 B17) "
= 1.024 (1.024) *
- B3 {531} - -
- 240 (240)
= 137 [137) -
5 ]| 1) : -
33 873 =13 - =F
14 {14
= 37 (317 - .
&7} {57 {214} 588 .
i34 14 558 (15,082 588 58
5031 1474 {2A5) - G220
118 ia7 % 252
427 - 427
40 - 40
5813 1.611 {285} B 43g
55749 TR 207 {15,37T) 388 a.5a7
6,753 18 D41 {46.025) 588 8367
_——m Ea— — — T e————
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranies|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 21 August 2024 ware aflocated as follows:

2024 2023
EDGD E0O0
Hart Primary School T 132
51 Patas’s Elnck C of E Primary Scnoal 106 114
Benedict Biscop C of E Academy 218 280
5t Halens Prmary School J&s 258
Holkey Park Academy 1€8 273
Venerable Bede {518 100
jan Ramseay 281 GAT
Grange Primary Schoal 187
S Apdan's Acadeirry 184 .
C#E hubs 144 1|
Caniral 453 478
Total belore fixad assal funds and pension feserde 1,640 2458
Restricted fived assst fund 25,135 6538
Total M TTH g aay

Thia ioBowing acadermy IS Camying 8 net defict on ity portion of the funds 8s {nlkows

Dafict
£000

WVanarable Bade (S1E]

yenerable Bede jomed the Trust dunng the previous accounting pariad. with a deficit as part of their
predecessos Trusi

The Trust 5 taking Iha following action 19 returm the academy o surplus

The Trus! tock decisive action on some of the highes! lsvels of spanding, which included a leadership
staffing restruciure. impiementabon of siafl absence management and a review of aiermative provesen
spend. Trust reserves are healihy Sespite the sehent's deficit, An [CFP plan and full financis rewew af afl
SLAs and contracts is underwdy which has siready idantrfied savings Thes process is being supgorted
by an ERMA consuMant
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Statemaent of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expendiiure incured by esach academy during the year was as Tollows

Teaching
and
educatonal
support staff
Cirsin
£000
Han Community
Prmary School 556
Sl Peter's Elwick
Cof E Prim
Schaal 505
Benedict Biscop
C of E Academy 1.167
51 Halang
Primary Schooi 1,363
Holley Park
Academy G623
Venerable Bade 4814
lan Ramsay 5811
Teaching huk 372
Central 475
Grange Primary
achool 1.188
1 Adan's
Acadermy Tid
Trusi 17833

Cithar Cther cosis

suppar staff  Educational excluding Tatal Totai
tosts Supphés  caprecalion 2024 2023
E0D0 E000 EQDD £000 E000
B1 18 155 812 g
e 15 148 T44 fd3
156 35 356 1.728 1.555
118 43 a5g 1813 1. 784
180 71 211 1.401 1.373
il 25 54 1,578 B.ET2 1584
555 a8 1582 E174 4 587
121 576 1.068 648
£ - d51 1.354 251

B3 47 183 1 485 -

104 i(2) 27a 1.103 =
2 457 465 5858 & 704 15 740
E———— = ——————— | _——e— s ————— e _
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NORTHERMN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 AUGUST 2024
Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net asseis batween funds - current period

Festrictad

Linreaincted Rastricted  fwed assal  Endowment Total
funds funds funds fumds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
EQO0 EQC0 il EQD0 £000
Tangitie fived assels - - 24 54E - 24 545
Cufrant assais 1,538 184 585 ga7 4 930
Creditors due withn one yaas (13} (2.070 - - (2,083}
Total 1526 114 25135 627 27 402
[ra— Sl ——————

Analysis of net assets batween funds - prigr pariod

Raginctad

rrestncted Besinctad  fiwsd assal Total
funcs fumds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
Eoo0 £000 £000 EQOD
Tangible fxed assals - . g 483 & 483
Cyrrent assets 2857 g7 1,372 E 303
Creditors dus within pRe yaar {567 {216 (818) {2385
2400 5B B8.53% 8 397

Total

Page 50



20.

2.

NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Raconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Met income for the peniod (as per Stetermant of Financial Aetryihies)

Adjustmants for:

Depraciation

Capdal grants fram OFE and ofhar cagital income
Definad benafit pension scheme finance incame
Dafinea banefit pension scheme obiigation inkerted
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributons payabhe
Defined penefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease/(increasal in dablors
iDecrease)/increase in creditars

Cash Inherited an transter

Asgals trangfarrad fram axisting academy trust

Net cash provided by operating activitiss

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchasa of langible fived assets
Cagital grants from DME Grayp
Cash Inherited on iransier

Net cash provided by invasting activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash m hand and at bank

Tatal cash and cash eguivalonts

Page &1

2024 2023
ECG0 £000
18,130 2.018
554 250
(732 {137
(103 -
& 258
(28| 214
- 8
rar 11,6243
8] 1855
{583) -
{17 924) {2.038)
48 S48
e ———— 1 ————,
2024 2023
£000 E00
(853} (B0
732 137
583 1,666
822 #83
2024 2023
£0C0 E600
310 2431
3101 2 431
—_—— ———




NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantee]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGUST 2024

Analysis of changes in net debt

a1
Septembar At 31 August
2023  Casn flows 2024
£000 £000 EQ00
Cash @l pank and in hand 24314 g0 imm
2431 ard J3.10%

Capital commitments

2024 2023
£000 EQQD

Contracted for but not provided in these financial slatements
Acquisitan of 1angible fixed assels - BA

Pensbon commitmants

The Trusl's employees balong to two prncipal pengion schameas the Teachers' Pension Schame Engiand
and Wales (TPS) for acadermic and related staft, and the Local Government Pension Schame (LGPS) for
non-teaching stall, which is managed by Tyna and Wear, Durham County Council and Teesside Pansion
Funds.. All are multi-amployar gefined berefit schemes

The pengian cosls &re assessed in accordance with the adwice of independent quatfied actuanes. Tha
iates! actuaral valuation of the TPS related o the pariod ended 31 March 2020. and that of the LGRS
relaied in the perod ended 31 March 2022

There were no cutstanding o¢ prapaid contributions at sthar the beginning or the and of the fimancial ysar
Teachers' Pension Scheme

introducton

The Teachers' Penson Schama (TPS) 15 & statulory contributory  Defined benefit scheme, gowermad by
ihe Teachers Pension Schems Regulatons 2014 Membership is sulomatic for fullktime leachers n
academi=s All teachers have the cpban to opt-out of the TPE folliowing enrebment

The TPS s an ynfunded schema to which both fne member and amployer makes contricubons. as -8
percentage of salary - these contributions are eradited 1o the Excheguer Retrament and other pension
bhanafits are paid by public funds provided by Patiament




NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(4 Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

24, Pension commitments [continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Schemae

The Govemmant Actuary using normal actuanal prnciples, conducts a formal actuarial resvigw of tha TPS
ih accardance with the Public Senvics Pensions (Valustions and Empioyer Cost Cap) Dwections 2014
Pubkshed by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the FEView 5 lo ensure scheme cosis are recognised
and managed appropriataly and the review specifies the lavel of fulure contributions

Actuarial scheme vakatons are dependant on assumptions about the value of fulure costs design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial vaiuation of the TPS was carried out as a¢ 31 March
<020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education an 27 Ociober 2023, wiih (he
SCAPE rale. set by HMT, applying & nobonal investmant retum based on 1 7% abave the raie of CPI The
key alementa of the valuation outcome are

. smplayer contribulion rales set 8t 28.88% of pansionabie Pay (mcluding 3 0.08% administration
levy) This 18 an increase of 5% in employer contnbutions and the cost control

- indal scheme kabilies (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost af future benafiss) for
service {o the effactive date of £262 000 million and notional assets (eshmated future contribubans
tagether wiin the notonal investments held at the valuation date) of £222 200 millon, ging a
rotanal past senace defcit of £33 300 midian

The next valuation result is dug to be implamented from 1 Apn 2028
The employer's pension costs paid o TPS in the year amouniad to £2 578 000 (2023 - £1,335.000)

A copy of the valuation repert and Supporing documantation 18 on the Teachars' Pensions websiie
(https: /Maw ta@cherspensions co uknewelamplovars/201 20 teachers-pension E-vAlUStON-feport, BEpx)

Trust is unable 1o icdentify itg share of the underfying assets and labihes of the plan. Accordingly. the
Trust has taken agvantage of the exgmplion in FRS 102 and has accounted for s contribubans (o the
scheme as if f ware a dafined contnibution scheme The Trus! has set out above the informalion availahie
on the schemme

Local Government Pengion Schame

The LGPS 5 a funded defined benefit pensan scheme with the aasets held in separate frusies
agministered funds Tha tolal conrbution mads for e year ended 31 August 2024 was E555,000 (2023
£568,000) of which empioyers contributons totalled £708 000 (2023 - E412.000) and employees
contrioutions totalled £247 000 (2023 - £168,000) The agraed contribytion rates for future years are
14.2% - 25 9% for employers and 5.5% - 12.5% for employess

The onginal local Governmant Pension scheme valuations showed an asse! of £2 890k Tha! asser
valuation @ highly dependan! an a numbear of assumplions and does nal represent the fulure valie of
benafits fo the frust. As a result the Trugtess commrsgioned a valuation of the polential benafis 1o tha
trust - an asset ceiing valustion. Based on minimum funding requirements for caniribubions relsting io
future service this showad a potential asset of £2 880k Given the valus of this combined with the fact that
e lasl Local Governmant Scheme sctuaral review sel the contributian rates fram 1 April 2023 and that
Ihesa will not be revised until April 2028 fha Trustess have decided 1o include the penglon assal at Enil i
respact of s scheme.

Parliament has agreed. at the raquast of the Secratary of Siate for Education. 1o a guarantes hal in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Lacal Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be mat by the




NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2024
Pansion commitments {continued|
Principal actuarial assumptions

Tyne and Wear Pansion Fund

2024 2023

) %

Rale of increase i salares 4 00 410
Rale of increase for pansons in payment/inflation 250 2560
Discoun rate for schama liabdities & 80 500
Inflation assumption (CP1) 2.50 £ 60
Commutation of pendions to lump sums &0.00 B 08

Tha current maortally assemptions include sufficent aliowance tar future mprovamants in mortalty rates
Tha assurmed life sxpeciations on resiremant age B3 are

2024 2023
Yaars YaEs
Retiring foday
Males 208 210
Fermales 240 241
Retring in 20 years
Males 217 222
Females 251 55
= - == —
Tesssida Pension Fund
2034 2623
b %
Rate of increase in salanes 365 3as
Rate of ircrease for pansions in paymentinflanon 265 285
Discount rate lor schame Iabimes E 00 .20
Inflation assumption (TP 185 =85
Commutation of pensions 1o lump sumE B0 00 7500

e, e

The current moftality assumplons include sufficent alowance for future improvements i morakty rales
The assumad Me evpactations on retrement age 85 are

2024 2023
Yaars Yaars
Hetiring today
Males 204 205
Famales 234 235
Ratinng i 20 yaars
Maies 21.2 213
Famalas 24.8 250
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantse)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
24,  Pension commitments {continued)

Durham County Council

31 August

2024 31 May 2024

b B

Rate of increass in salares 31.50 370
Rate of increase for pensians in paymantinflatan 2.50 270
Discount rate for scheme iabidies 4,80 520
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.50 2.70
Commutation of pensions to lump sums B0.00 80.00

The current morakty assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future improvements in mortaliity rates.
The sssumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are’

31 Augusl
2024 31 May 2024
Years Years
Ratinng 1oday
Males 35 21.5
Females 238 238
Retiring in 20 years
Mal=g 224 £Z4
Feamales 24 B 246
———— e
Sensitivity analysis
Scheme labikies would have been affected by changes in assumplions as follows
2024 2023
EQQQ EQ0Q
Discount rale +0 1% (4234 (275)
Discouni rate -0 1% 433 281
Maortality assumption - | year incragse 245 (357)
Mortadity assumption - 1 year decreass 124%) 357
CFrate =0, 1%, a1 248
CPI rate -0, 1% R EN] (233)
1 ————

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Pansion commitments (continued)

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was

Egquitees

Gavarmmant honds
Comparste bonds

Progparty

Cash and other ligusd asssty
Muli Asset Cradit

Dthar aasars

Total market value of assels

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,554 000 (2023 - E18.000)

At 3t August At 31 August

The amounts racognises i the Stalemen: of Firancial Actvibes are as follows

Curreni sa&nnoe oonl
Interesi income
Interesl Cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Changes in the present value of e cefined benefit oblgations ware as follows

Al 1 September 2023

Conversion of academy tnisle

Transferred in oo exisbng academes jgrung the trast
Current sarics SOl

Interest cosl

Employee sontnbutons

Actuarial gams

Bearefita pand

Asse! Ceding Restnchon

At 31 Auguet 2024

Fage 68

2024 2023
£000 E000
12 503 A 031
5dE k|
1,853 1 348
1318 2.108
401 JBD

- 328

2 302 8235
21,021 13,903

e —
Jhi2a 20213
E000 £0a0
(BB 626)
TS s i
(BT 3] (384
(577 (B34}
= aial — —
2024 2023
£000 £0od
13,103 3082
1 A0« H

1887 a8 820
BED aza
73 364
207 155
(-4 (2 8034
(27T8] 1207
532 t.55a
21024 13103
—_— e



NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Pengion commitments (continued)

Changas in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets wers as follows

2024 <023

EQO E£000
At 1 September 2023 13103 3,915
Conversion of academy trusts 4, 158 -
Transferrad in on ewsting academies joining the trust 1.287 B.521
Interes| income TTE T8
Actuanal gans/losses) e {357
Emplayer cantribidicns T0H 412
Emgployee contributions 24T 155
Benefits paid (276) (20
At 31 August 2024 21,021 13,103

e e

Oparating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the Trust had commitments to make futire Mminimum lease payments under non-
canceilable operating lsases as follows:

2024 2023
EDOG EQCO
AMmoents due within one yaar 11

_ﬁ

Related party transactions

COwing 1o the nature of the Trust and the compogition of the Board of Trustees bBeing drawn fram jocal
public and privale secior organisations. transaciions may taka place wih organisations in which the
Irusiess have @n interest, All ransactons invohang such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook nckading notifying the ESFA of all transachons mads
on ar after 1 Apnd 2018 And obiaining thair approval where required. and with the Trust's fimancial
regulations and normal procurament pracedures reiating to connected and reiated party transactions
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaraniss)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Ralated party transactions (continued)
Expengiture retgted pary transactont
E:hnnhMHEEld-—ummm:mwh:hJHﬁiun i a Trustes & Vice Chaer

- The Trust purchasad HR and empioyment advica fron Scnools North East totalling £2.000 (2023
Enil] durng the panod The amount oulstandng at 21 August 2024 was Enil (2023 Enil)

- Thea Trust made the purchasa a |nm‘iunqﬂﬂnlnwinqlmwmmlwmln
aceardance with its financial regulations. which J Heaton naither participated in. nor influenced

- In emenng mio the transachon the Trust has complied with the requirements of tha Academy Trust
Handbook 2022

Linthame Community Primary School - a Schoal in which 5 Lymar, & Trustes & aiso a Trusiee of Legacy
Lamming Trust of wneh Linthome Community Frimary School is a pan

The Trust made purchases toteding £4 000 (2023 £2 000} dunng the pariod. The amoun
putstanding al 31 Augusr 2024 was £l (2023 Endl)
. The Trust mace the purchase at arms' langth fallowing a compelilive {endanng Bxencise
in accordance with s financial regulatons, which § Lymar maithas participated in, nor influenced
. in enterng into the iransacticn the Trust his complied with the requirernents of the
Acadermy Trust Handbook 2023

Siaft Wedl Baing L12 - 3 Dusiness (n which W Roberts = 3 Diracior

_ The Trust made purchases iotaling £2 000 (2023 £nl) unng the penod. The amount cutstanding at
31 August 2024 was Enil (2023 Enil]

_ Tha Trus! made the purchasa at arms length following 8 competitive tendanng Exarcisa if
accordance with its financisl regulatons which W Riobens nedher participated in_ nor influenced

- in entening into the transaction the Trust has comphed with the regquiramants of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2023

Income related pary Iensactions

- During the year the Trust recaived £15 000 from Linthompe Community Pranary School (2023 £nd)
an Trust i which S Lymer s a Trusiee

im antanng Mo these Wansachons the Trusi has complied with the requirements of (he Academy Trust
Handbook 2023
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NORTHERN LIGHTS LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

5t Aidan's Academy

intangible assats

Tangible fixed assats
Leasahold land and buddings
Furniture and equipment
COmpuisr equgsment

Motor vehicles

Currani assats

Current asset investmenis
Dedtors due within one yesr
Cash a1 bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors dus within one year
Pensions

Pensions - pensan scheme gassis

Fage 63

‘valus
reponad by

fransfermng  Transferin

brus!  recognised

E000 Edan

B.734 B.734

127 127

187 187

g g

827 B27

213 213

284 264

(3213 (321)

511 511

10,387 10,381

_me———



HORTHERM LIGHTS LEARMNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Conversion to an academy trust

Orn 1 March 2024 Grange Primary School converied io acadamy ITUSL Slatus wndar the Academes Ac
2010 and al the operations and assets and |abilities were transferrad 16 Northern Lights Laarming Trust
traem Hartepool Borough Council for ENIL consideration

The transfer has been accounisd for as a combanation thatl is in substance a gift The assets and
kahities transferred were valued at thes fair value and recogrised in the Balance Sheet under the
approprate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain In the Statement of
Financial Actvibes &s Income frem Donations and Capeal Geanis - trarader from local suthonty on
CONVEaTsian

The following @able sats oul the fair values cf the idantifiabla assals and iabiines ens'erred and 20
analysis of their recogrition w the Statement of Financial Ectivites

Fesiricted
Unrestricied Reginctad  fiwed asset Tetal
funds funcs funds furds
£000 EOCD £000 ECO0
Tangible fixed assels
Leagahoid land and bulldings - - B asy B BST
Currant assots
Cash - reprasenting-budge? surplus on
LA funds 259 - . 299
Pansian liabiity - (51T - 1317}
Net assets/iliabilities) 285 (517} B.8&T BE34
—___] —_——— i e
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